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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

þ Quarterly Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2010

o Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the transition period from                      to                     .

Commission file number 1-16091
POLYONE CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Ohio
(State or other jurisdiction

of incorporation or organization)

34-1730488
(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

33587 Walker Road, Avon Lake, Ohio
(Address of principal executive offices)

44012
(Zip Code)

Registrant�s telephone number, including area code: (440) 930-1000
Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report: Not Applicable

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

þ Yes o No
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§
232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to
submit and post such files). o Yes o No
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer� and �smaller reporting
company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer þ Non-accelerated filer o Smaller reporting
company o

(Do not check if a smaller
reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). o
Yes þ No
The number of outstanding shares of the registrant�s common stock, $0.01 par value, as of November 2, 2010 was
93,546,206.
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Part I � Financial Information
Item 1. Financial Statements

PolyOne Corporation and Subsidiaries
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations (Unaudited)

(In millions, except per share data)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,

Adjusted Adjusted
2010 2009 2010 2009

Sales $ 680.8 $ 548.3 $ 2,004.1 $ 1,508.2

Cost of sales 569.6 442.3 1,662.7 1,270.5

Gross margin 111.2 106.0 341.4 237.7
Selling and administrative 77.1 56.3 224.0 203.6
Adjustment to impairment of goodwill � � � 5.0
Income from equity affiliates 10.5 5.2 19.8 28.6

Operating income 44.6 54.9 137.2 57.7
Interest expense, net (7.5) (8.5) (23.2) (26.1)
Debt extinguishment costs (29.4) � (29.4) �
Other expense, net (0.3) (1.2) (2.2) (8.5)

Income before income taxes 7.4 45.2 82.4 23.1
Income tax (expense) benefit (6.4) 3.1 (17.3) 5.6

Net income (loss) $ 1.0 $ 48.3 $ 65.1 $ 28.7

Earnings per common share:
Basic earnings $ 0.01 $ 0.52 $ 0.70 $ 0.31
Diluted earnings $ 0.01 $ 0.51 $ 0.68 $ 0.31

Weighted-average shares used to compute earnings per
share:
Basic 93.1 92.4 92.8 92.4
Diluted 96.3 93.9 95.7 93.0
See Accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PolyOne Corporation and Subsidiaries
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In millions)

(Unaudited) Adjusted
September

30,
December

31,
2010 2009

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 307.9 $ 222.7
Accounts receivable, net 349.4 274.4
Inventories 234.3 183.7
Other current assets 28.1 38.0

Total current assets 919.7 718.8
Property, net 368.1 392.4
Investment in equity affiliates and nonconsolidated subsidiary 12.4 5.8
Goodwill 163.7 163.5
Other intangible assets, net 68.7 71.7
Deferred income tax assets 6.5 8.1
Other non-current assets 75.9 55.7

Total assets $ 1,615.0 $ 1,416.0

Liabilities and Shareholders� Equity
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt $ 19.9 $ 19.9
Short-term debt � 0.5
Accounts payable 310.2 238.3
Accrued expenses 135.4 117.0

Total current liabilities 465.5 375.7
Long-term debt 434.0 389.2
Post-retirement benefits other than pensions 19.7 21.8
Pension benefits 162.0 173.0
Other non-current liabilities 110.7 98.6
Shareholders� equity 423.1 357.7

Total liabilities and shareholders� equity $ 1,615.0 $ 1,416.0

See Accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PolyOne Corporation and Subsidiaries
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

(In millions)

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

Adjusted
2010 2009

Operating Activities
Net income $ 65.1 $ 28.7
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 41.5 49.8
Deferred income tax provision 4.1 9.4
Debt extinguishment costs 27.7 �
Provision for doubtful accounts 2.0 3.0
Stock compensation expense 3.2 2.2
Adjustment to impairment of goodwill � 5.0
Asset write-downs and impairment charges 0.4 7.7
Companies carried at equity:
Income from equity affiliates (19.8) (28.6)
Dividends and distributions received 11.6 27.6
Change in assets and liabilities, net of acquisition:
Increase in accounts receivable (78.0) (20.2)
(Increase) decrease in inventories (51.8) 55.0
Increase in accounts payable 73.1 97.8
Decrease in sale of accounts receivable � (14.2)
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and other 3.3 (6.3)

Net cash provided by operating activities 82.4 216.9

Investing Activities
Capital expenditures (18.9) (15.9)
Proceeds from sale of equity affiliate and other assets 7.8 �

Net cash used by investing activities (11.1) (15.9)

Financing Activities
Change in short-term debt (0.4) (5.5)
Issuance of long-term debt, net of issuance costs 353.6 �
Repayment of long-term debt (316.0) �
Payment of debt extinguishment costs (27.7) �
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 3.9 �

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 13.4 (5.5)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 0.5 1.2

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 85.2 196.7
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 222.7 44.3
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Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 307.9 $ 241.0

See Accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
4

Edgar Filing: POLYONE CORP - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 7



Table of Contents

PolyOne Corporation and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

Note 1 � Basis of Presentation
The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Form 10-Q instructions and in the opinion of management contain all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring
accruals necessary to present fairly the financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the periods
presented. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements
and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from these estimates. These interim financial statements should
be read in conjunction with the financial statements and accompanying notes included in the Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 of PolyOne Corporation.
Operating results for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2010 are not necessarily indicative of the
results that may be attained in subsequent periods or for the year ending December 31, 2010.
Note 2 � Change in Accounting Principle
Effective January 1, 2010, we elected to change our method of valuing inventories for certain U.S. businesses to the
first-in, first-out (FIFO) method, while in prior years, these inventories were valued using the last-in, first-out
(LIFO) method. As a result of this change, all inventories are valued using the FIFO method. Inventories accounted
for under the FIFO method as a percent of total consolidated inventories was 76%, with the remainder determined on
a LIFO basis at December 31, 2009. We believe the FIFO method is preferable as it conforms the inventory costing
methods for all of our inventories to a single method and improves comparability with our industry peers. The FIFO
method also better reflects current acquisition cost of those inventories on our consolidated balance sheets. In
accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 250,
Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, all prior periods presented have been adjusted to apply the new method
retrospectively. The effect of the change in our inventory costing method increased our inventory balance and retained
earnings by $42.4 million as of January 1, 2009. There were no tax effects to retained earnings for any of the periods
presented below due to the fact that we have a valuation allowance recorded against our net deferred tax assets in the
United States.
We have presented the effects of the change in accounting principle for inventory costs on our consolidated financial
statements for 2010 and 2009 below. We have condensed the comparative financial statements for financial statement
line items that were not affected by the change in accounting principle.

5
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Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations

Three months ended September
30, 2010

Three months ended September
30, 2009

Computed Change Reported Originally Change

(In millions, except per share data)
under
LIFO

to
FIFO

under
FIFO Reported

to
FIFO Adjusted

Sales $ 680.8 $ � $ 680.8 $ 548.3 $ � $ 548.3
Cost of sales 570.4 (0.8) 569.6 441.0 1.3 442.3

Gross margin 110.4 0.8 111.2 107.3 (1.3) 106.0
Selling and administrative 77.1 � 77.1 56.3 � 56.3
Income from equity affiliates 10.5 � 10.5 5.2 � 5.2

Operating income 43.8 0.8 44.6 56.2 (1.3) 54.9
Interest and other expense, net (37.2) � (37.2) (9.7) � (9.7)

Income before income taxes 6.6 0.8 7.4 46.5 (1.3) 45.2
Income tax expense (6.4) � (6.4) 3.1 � 3.1

Net income $ 0.2 $ 0.8 $ 1.0 $ 49.6 $ (1.3) $ 48.3

Earnings per common share:
Basic earnings per common share $ 0.00 $ 0.01 $ 0.01 $ 0.54 $ (0.02) $ 0.52
Diluted earnings per common share $ 0.00 $ 0.01 $ 0.01 $ 0.53 $ (0.02) $ 0.51

Nine months ended September 30,
2010

Nine months ended September
30, 2009

Computed Change Reported Originally Change

(In millions, except per share data)
under
LIFO

to
FIFO

under
FIFO Reported

to
FIFO Adjusted

Sales $ 2,004.1 $ � $ 2,004.1 $ 1,508.2 $ � $ 1,508.2
Cost of sales 1,663.8 (1.1) 1,662.7 1,255.4 15.1 1,270.5

Gross margin 340.3 1.1 341.4 252.8 (15.1) 237.7
Selling and administrative 224.0 � 224.0 203.6 � 203.6
Other income, net 19.8 � 19.8 23.6 � 23.6

Operating income 136.1 1.1 137.2 72.8 (15.1) 57.7
Interest and other expense, net (54.8) � (54.8) (34.6) � (34.6)

Income before income taxes 81.3 1.1 82.4 38.2 (15.1) 23.1
Income tax expense (17.3) � (17.3) 5.6 � 5.6

Net income $ 64.0 $ 1.1 $ 65.1 $ 43.8 $ (15.1) $ 28.7

Earnings per common share:

Edgar Filing: POLYONE CORP - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 9



Basic earnings per common share $ 0.69 $ 0.01 $ 0.70 $ 0.47 $ (0.16) $ 0.31
Diluted earnings per common share $ 0.67 $ 0.01 $ 0.68 $ 0.47 $ (0.16) $ 0.31
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Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

September 30, 2010
Computed Change Reported

(In millions)
under
LIFO to FIFO

under
FIFO

Assets
Current assets:
Inventories $ 209.1 $ 25.2 $ 234.3
Other current assets 685.4 � 685.4

Total current assets 894.5 25.2 919.7
Other non-current assets 695.3 � 695.3

Total assets $ 1,589.8 $ 25.2 $ 1,615.0

Liabilities and Shareholders� Equity
Current liabilities $ 465.5 $ � $ 465.5
Non-current liabilities 726.4 � 726.4
Shareholders� equity 397.9 25.2 423.1

Total liabilities and shareholders� equity $ 1,589.8 $ 25.2 $ 1,615.0

December 31, 2009
Originally Change

(In millions) Reported to FIFO Adjusted
Assets
Current assets:
Inventories $ 159.6 $ 24.1 $ 183.7
Other current assets 535.1 � 535.1

Total current assets 694.7 24.1 718.8
Other non-current assets 697.2 � 697.2

Total assets $ 1,391.9 $ 24.1 $ 1,416.0

Liabilities and Shareholders� Equity
Current liabilities $ 375.7 $ � $ 375.7
Non-current liabilities 682.6 � 682.6
Shareholders� equity 333.6 24.1 357.7

Total liabilities and shareholders� equity $ 1,391.9 $ 24.1 $ 1,416.0

7
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Nine months ended September 30, 2010
Computed Change Reported

(In millions)
under
LIFO

to
FIFO

under
FIFO

Operating Activities
Net income $ 64.0 $ 1.1 $ 65.1
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Other adjustments, net 70.7 � 70.7
Change in assets and liabilities, net of acquisition:
Increase in inventories (50.7) (1.1) (51.8)
Decrease in other (1.6) � (1.6)

Net cash provided by operating activities 82.4 � 82.4
Net cash used by investing activities (11.1) � (11.1)
Net cash provided by financing activities 13.4 � 13.4
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 0.5 � 0.5

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 85.2 � 85.2
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 222.7 � 222.7

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 307.9 � $ 307.9

Nine months ended September 30, 2009
Originally Change

(In millions) Reported to FIFO Adjusted
Operating Activities
Net income $ 43.8 $ (15.1) $ 28.7
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Other adjustments, net 76.1 � 76.1
Change in assets and liabilities, net of acquisition:
Decrease in inventories 39.9 15.1 55.0
Increase in other 57.1 � 57.1

Net cash provided by operating activities 216.9 � 216.9
Net cash used by investing activities (15.9) � (15.9)
Net cash provided by financing activities (5.5) � (5.5)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 1.2 � 1.2

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 196.7 � 196.7
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 44.3 � 44.3

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 241.0 � $ 241.0

8
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Note 3 � Goodwill
Goodwill as of September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, by operating segment, was as follows:

September
30,

December
31,

(In millions) 2010 2009
Global Specialty Engineered Materials $ 82.5 $ 82.4
Global Color, Additives and Inks 72.2 72.1
Performance Products and Solutions 7.4 7.4
PolyOne Distribution 1.6 1.6

Total $ 163.7 $ 163.5

Note 4 � Inventories
As discussed in Note 2, Change in Accounting Principle, effective January 1, 2010, we elected to change our costing
method for certain inventories. We applied this change in accounting principle by adjusting all prior periods presented
retrospectively. Components of inventories are as follows:

Adjusted
September

30,
December

31,
(In millions) 2010 2009
At FIFO cost:
Finished products $ 146.5 $ 108.4
Work in process 2.8 2.4
Raw materials and supplies 85.0 72.9

$ 234.3 $ 183.7

Note 5 � Property

September
30,

December
31,

(In millions) 2010 2009
Land and land improvements $ 41.6 $ 40.7
Buildings 281.0 277.0
Machinery and equipment 916.1 916.5

1,238.7 1,234.2
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (870.6) (841.8)

$ 368.1 $ 392.4

Note 6 � Income Taxes
Income tax expense was $6.4 million for the third quarter of 2010 compared to a benefit of $3.1 million in the third
quarter of 2009. For the first nine months of 2010, we recognized income tax expense of $17.3 million compared to a
benefit of $5.6 million in the first nine months of 2009. We record our interim provision for income taxes based on
our estimated annual effective tax rate as well as certain items discrete to the current period. Our interim provision as
well as our estimated annual effective tax rate is impacted by a number of factors including our U.S. federal and state
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and foreign income tax loss carry forwards and our ability to use them as well as changes to our unrealized tax
benefits.
We increased existing valuation allowances against our deferred tax assets by $5.1 million in the third quarter of 2010
as a result of a pre-tax loss in the United States during that period primarily related to debt extinguishment costs. We
decreased the same valuation allowance by $11.4 million in the first nine months of 2010 as a result of generating
positive pre-tax income during that period. The related non-cash income tax expense was $3.0 million and a benefit of
$12.1 million in the third quarter and first nine months of 2010, respectively, and related to various U.S. federal, state,
local, and foreign deferred tax assets. Also, during the third quarter and first nine months of 2010, we recognized
$1.9 million and $2.5 million, respectively, of income tax expense, including the related interest and penalties,
associated with

9
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uncertain tax positions. Our effective tax rates for the third quarter and first nine months of 2010 reflect these items
and the impact of foreign earnings which are taxed at rates that differ from the United States.
We decreased existing valuation allowances against our deferred tax assets by $28.4 million in the third quarter of
2009 and $34.6 million for the first nine months of 2009. This non-cash benefit to income tax expense related to
various U.S. federal, state, local and foreign deferred tax assets. Also, during the third quarter and first nine months of
2009, we recognized $1.5 million of income tax expense and $1.5 million of income tax benefit, respectively,
including related interest and penalties, associated with uncertain tax positions.
We recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain income tax items in the provision for income taxes.
Note 7 � Investment in Equity Affiliates
The results of operations of SunBelt Chlor-Alkali Partnership (SunBelt) are included in the SunBelt Joint Venture
segment. We own 50% of SunBelt.
The following table presents SunBelt�s summarized financial results for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,

(Dollars in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Net sales $ 51.6 $ 36.9 $ 120.6 $ 135.1
Operating income $ 21.3 $ 11.6 $ 41.0 $ 59.2
Partnership income as reported by SunBelt $ 19.3 $ 9.6 $ 35.1 $ 53.2

Equity affiliate earnings recorded by PolyOne $ 9.7 $ 4.8 $ 17.6 $ 26.6

September
30,

December
31,

(In millions) 2010 2009
Current assets $ 45.7 $ 16.1
Non-current assets 82.5 94.1

Total assets 128.2 110.2

Current liabilities 23.4 21.4
Non-current liabilities 85.3 85.3

Total liabilities 108.7 106.7

Partnership capital $ 19.5 $ 3.5

Other investments in equity affiliates are discussed below.
We own 50% of BayOne Urethane Systems, L.L.C. (BayOne), which is included in the Global Color, Additives and
Inks operating segment. Through its disposition on October 13, 2009, the former Geon Polimeros Andinos equity
affiliate (owned 50%) was included in the Performance Products and Solutions operating segment. Combined
summarized financial information for these equity affiliates follows.

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,

(Dollars in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
As reported by other equity affiliates:
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Net sales $ 15.6 $ 20.9 $ 42.7 $ 63.3
Operating income $ 1.7 $ 1.2 $ 4.5 $ 4.8
Partnership income as reported by other equity affiliates $ 1.6 $ 1.0 $ 4.4 $ 4.1

Equity affiliate earnings recorded by PolyOne $ 0.8 $ 0.4 $ 2.2 $ 2.0

10
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Note 8 � Weighted-Average Shares Used in Computing Earnings Per Share

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,

(In millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Weighted-average shares outstanding � basic 93.1 92.4 92.8 92.4

Weighted-average shares � diluted:
Weighted-average shares outstanding � basic 93.1 92.4 92.8 92.4
Plus dilutive impact of stock options and awards 3.2 1.5 2.9 0.6

Weighted-average shares � diluted 96.3 93.9 95.7 93.0

Outstanding stock options with exercise prices greater than the average price of the common shares and certain other
awards are anti-dilutive and are not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share. For the three months
and nine months ended September 30, 2010, 1.1 million and 1.0 million, respectively, of these options and awards
were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share because their effect would have been anti-dilutive.
For the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2009, 5.5 million and 5.9 million, respectively, were
excluded from the computation of the diluted loss per share.
Note 9 � Employee Separation and Plant Phaseout
Management has undertaken certain restructuring initiatives to improve profitability, and as a result, we have incurred
employee separation and plant phaseout costs. Employee separation and plant phaseout costs are reflected on the line
Corporate and eliminations in Note 13, Segment Information. For further discussion of these initiatives, see Note 3,
Employee Separation and Plant Phaseout, to the consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes
included in PolyOne�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009.
A summary of total employee separation and plant phaseout costs for the three months and nine months ended
September 30, 2010 and 2009, including where the charges are recorded in the accompanying condensed consolidated
statements of operations, follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,

(In millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Cost of sales $ 0.8 $ 10.5 $ 1.1 $ 23.2
Selling and administrative 0.5 1.6 0.8 2.0

Total employee separation and plant phaseout $ 1.3 $ 12.1 $ 1.9 $ 25.2

Cash payments during the three months ended September 30, 2010 and 2009 were $1.8 million and $6.6 million,
respectively. Cash payments during the nine months ended September 30, 2010 and 2009 were $6.2 million and
$26.9 million, respectively. Included in Cost of sales for the nine months ended September 30, 2010 were charges of
$0.2 million for accelerated depreciation on assets related to these restructuring initiatives, all of which were
recognized during the first quarter. For the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2009, charges of
$2.1 million and $7.5 million, respectively, related to accelerated depreciation were included in Cost of sales.

11
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The following table details the changes to the reserves associated with these restructuring initiatives for the nine
months ended September 30, 2010:

Employee Plant Phaseout Costs
Separation Asset

(Dollars in millions) Costs
Cash
Closure Write-downs Total

Realignment of certain manufacturing plants
Balance at January 1, 2010 $ 3.0 $ 1.7 $ � $ 4.7
Charge 1.0 0.6 0.3 1.9
Utilized (3.3) (2.4) (0.3) (6.0)
Impact of foreign currency translation � 0.1 � 0.1

Balance at September 30, 2010 $ 0.7 $ � $ � $ 0.7

We do not expect to incur significant expenses associated with these activities in the remainder of 2010.
Note 10 � Employee Benefit Plans
Components of defined benefit pension plan costs are as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,

(In millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Service cost $ 0.4 $ 0.4 $ 1.2 $ 1.1
Interest cost 7.5 8.4 22.3 24.1
Expected return on plan assets (6.6) (6.3) (19.6) (17.1)
Curtailment gain � � � (0.5)
Amortization of unrecognized losses, transition obligation
and prior service costs 2.6 1.7 7.6 10.2

$ 3.9 $ 4.2 $ 11.5 $ 17.8

Components of postretirement health care plan benefit costs are as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,

(In millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Service cost $ � $ 0.1 $ � $ 0.2
Interest cost 0.4 1.1 1.1 4.0
Curtailment gain � (21.1) � (21.1)
Amortization of unrecognized losses, transition obligation
and prior service costs (4.2) (2.4) (12.6) (4.2)

$ (3.8) $ (22.3) $ (11.5) $ (21.1)

On January 15, 2009, our Board of Directors approved and adopted changes to the Geon Pension Plan (Geon Plan),
the Benefit Restoration Plan (BRP), the voluntary retirement savings plan (RSP) and the Supplemental Retirement
Benefit Plan (SRP). Effective March 20, 2009, the amendments permanently froze future benefit accruals and
provided that participants will not receive credit under the Geon Plan or the BRP for any eligible earnings paid on or
after that date.
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On September 1, 2009, we adopted changes to our postretirement healthcare plan whereby, effective January 1, 2010,
the plan, for certain eligible retirees, was discontinued, and benefits will be phased out through December 31, 2012.
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Note 11 � Financing Arrangements
Short-term debt � At September 30, 2010, there was no short-term debt outstanding.
Long-term debt � Long-term debt consisted of the following:

September
30,

December
31,

(Dollars in millions) 2010(1) 2009(1)
8.875% senior notes due May 2012 $ 24.0 $ 279.5
7.500% debentures due December 2015 50.0 50.0
7.375% senior notes due September 2020 360.0 �
Medium-term notes:
6.52% medium-term notes due February 2010 � 19.9
6.58% medium-term notes due February 2011 19.9 19.7
Credit facility borrowings, facility expires March 2011 � 40.0

Total long-term debt 453.9 409.1
Less current portion 19.9 19.9

Total long-term debt, net of current portion $ 434.0 $ 389.2

(1) Book values
include
unamortized
discounts and
adjustments
related to
hedging
instruments, as
applicable.

Current maturities of long-term debt at September 30, 2010 consists of $19.9 million of our 6.58% medium-term notes
due February 2011.
In February 2010, we repaid $20 million aggregate principal amount of our 6.52% medium-term notes.
In July 2010, we repaid $40 million of outstanding borrowings and terminated the related commitments under our
$40 million unsecured revolving and letter of credit facility, which was scheduled to mature on March 20, 2011. Debt
extinguishment costs of $1.4 million related to the early retirement of this debt are shown within the Debt
extinguishment costs line in our Consolidated Statement of Operations.
In September 2010, we issued $360 million of senior unsecured notes at par that mature in September 2020 and bear
interest at 7.375% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on March 15th and September 15th of each year.
Deferred financing costs of $7.0 million from the issuance are included in Other non-current assets and will be
amortized over 10 years, the term of the senior unsecured notes. We used a portion of the net proceeds from the
issuance of these notes to repurchase $256 million aggregate principle amount of its 8.875% senior notes due
May 2012 at a premium of $25.6 million in the third quarter of 2010. The tender premium, $0.7 million of other debt
extinguishment costs and the write-off of deferred note issuance costs of $1.7 million are shown within the Debt
extinguishment costs line in our Consolidated Statement of Operations.
We are exposed to market risk from changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Information about our risks and
exposure management is included in Item 7A �Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk� in our

Edgar Filing: POLYONE CORP - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 21



Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009. There have been no material changes in the
market risk from December 31, 2009, to September 30, 2010.
Note 12 � Sale of Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable consist of the following:

September
30,

December
31,

(In millions) 2010 2009
Trade accounts receivable $ 159.2 $ 129.2
Retained interest in securitized accounts receivable 194.9 151.1
Allowance for doubtful accounts (4.7) (5.9)

$ 349.4 $ 274.4

13
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Sale of Accounts Receivable � Under the terms of our receivables sale facility, we sell accounts receivable to PolyOne
Funding Corporation (PFC) and PolyOne Funding Canada Corporation (PFCC), both wholly owned,
bankruptcy-remote subsidiaries. PFC and PFCC, in turn, may sell an undivided interest in up to $175 million and
$25 million of these accounts receivable, respectively, to certain investors. The receivables sale facility matures in
June 2012. As of September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, accounts receivable totaling $194.9 million and $151.1
million, respectively, were sold by us to PFC and PFCC. The maximum amount of proceeds that PFC and PFCC may
receive under the facility is limited to the lesser of $200 million or 85% of the eligible domestic and Canadian
accounts receivable sold. As of September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, neither PFC and PFCC had sold any of
their undivided interests in accounts receivable.
The receivables sale facility also makes up to $40 million available for the issuance of standby letters of credit as a
sub-limit within the $200 million limit under the facility, of which $13.9 million was used at September 30, 2010. The
level of availability under the receivables sale facility is based on the prior month�s total accounts receivable sold to
PFC and PFCC, as reduced by outstanding letters of credit. Additionally, availability is dependent upon compliance
with a fixed charge coverage ratio covenant related primarily to operating performance that is set forth in the related
agreements. As of September 30, 2010, we were in compliance with these covenants. As of September 30, 2010,
$139.5 million of securitized accounts receivable were available for sale.
Note 13 � Segment Information
On February 4, 2010, we announced a new global organization structure that will help us better serve our global
customers, drive our earnings growth, better execute our strategy, and leverage our geographic footprint. Our former
International Color and Engineered Materials operating segment has been split and is now reported within the Global
Specialty Engineered Materials operating segment and the Global Color, Additives and Inks operating segment. In
addition, our former Resin and Intermediates segment is now referred to as the SunBelt Joint Venture. We now have
five reportable segments: (1) Global Color, Additives and Inks; (2) Global Specialty Engineered Materials;
(3) Performance Products and Solutions; (4) PolyOne Distribution; and (5) SunBelt Joint Venture.
As a result of these changes to PolyOne�s segment structure, prior period segment information was reclassified to
conform to the 2010 presentation. These changes did not impact total segment results.
Segment information for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, adjusted to reflect
our new segment reporting structure and change in accounting principle follows:

Three Months Ended September 30,
2010

Three Months Ended September 30,
2009

Sales to
External

Segment
Operating

Sales to
External

Segment
Operating

(In millions) Customers
Total
Sales Income Customers

Total
Sales Income

Global Specialty
Engineered Materials $ 128.0 $ 136.9 $ 14.1 $ 100.8 $ 107.3 $ 8.1
Global Color,
Additives and Inks 134.5 135.2 10.0 122.9 122.9 9.4
Performance Products
and Solutions 180.8 198.2 17.9 161.9 180.9 12.8
PolyOne Distribution 237.5 238.4 12.2 162.7 163.1 6.5
SunBelt Joint Venture � � 8.6 � � 3.8
Corporate and
eliminations � (27.9) (18.2) � (25.9) 14.3

Total $ 680.8 $ 680.8 $ 44.6 $ 548.3 $ 548.3 $ 54.9
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Nine Months Ended September 30, 2010 Nine Months Ended September 30, 2009
Sales to
External

Segment
Operating

Sales to
External

Segment
Operating

(In millions) Customers
Total
Sales Income Customers

Total
Sales Income

Global Specialty
Engineered Materials $ 366.0 $ 390.7 $ 38.3 $ 273.0 $ 290.1 $ 12.3
Global Color,
Additives and Inks 401.1 403.2 30.5 343.6 344.7 17.0
Performance Products
and Solutions 544.0 600.4 47.6 457.8 510.0 26.3
PolyOne Distribution 693.0 695.7 32.4 433.8 435.1 15.3
SunBelt Joint Venture � � 14.4 � � 23.5
Corporate and
eliminations � (85.9) (26.0) � (71.7) (36.7)

Total $ 2,004.1 $ 2,004.1 $ 137.2 $ 1,508.2 $ 1,508.2 $ 57.7

Total Assets
Adjusted

September
30, 2010

December 31,
2009

Global Specialty Engineered Materials $ 355.6 $ 324.1
Global Color, Additives and Inks 354.0 344.7
Performance Products and Solutions 301.2 282.6
PolyOne Distribution 197.3 152.9
SunBelt Joint Venture 10.3 2.0
Corporate and eliminations 396.6 309.7

Total $ 1,615.0 $ 1,416.0

Note 14 � Commitments and Contingencies
We have been notified by federal and state environmental agencies and by private parties that we may be a potentially
responsible party (PRP) in connection with the investigation and remediation of certain environmental waste disposal
sites. While government agencies frequently assert that PRPs are jointly and severally liable at these sites, in our
experience, the interim and final allocations of liability costs are generally made based on the relative contribution of
waste. We believe that our potential continuing liability with respect to these sites will not have a material adverse
effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. In addition, we initiate corrective and
preventive environmental projects of our own to ensure safe and lawful activities at our operations. We believe that
compliance with current governmental regulations at all levels will not have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition.
During the nine months ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, we recognized $10.2 million and $8.3 million,
respectively, of expense related to environmental activities at all of our active and inactive sites. During the nine
months ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, we received $14.4 million and $23.9 million, respectively, of proceeds
from insurance recoveries. The gains associated with these recoveries are included within Cost of sales in our
Consolidated Statement of Operations.
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Based on estimates that were prepared by our environmental engineers and consultants, we had accrued $80.8 million
at September 30, 2010 and $81.7 million at December 31, 2009 for probable future environmental expenditures
related to previously contaminated sites. The accruals represent our best estimate of the remaining probable
remediation costs, based upon information and technology that is currently available and our view of the most likely
remedy. Depending upon the results of future testing, the ultimate remediation alternatives undertaken, changes in
regulations, new information, newly discovered conditions and other factors, it is reasonably possible that we could
incur additional costs in excess of the amount accrued at September 30, 2010. However, such additional costs, if any,
cannot be currently estimated. Our estimate of the liability may be revised as new regulations or technologies are
developed or additional information is obtained. Additional information related to environmental liabilities is in Note
12, Commitments and
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Related-Party Information, to the consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2009.
We guarantee $48.8 million of SunBelt�s outstanding senior secured notes in connection with the construction of a
chlor-alkali facility in McIntosh, Alabama. This debt matures in equal annual installments through 2017.
Note 15 � Fair Value
The estimated fair values of financial instruments were principally based on market prices where such prices were
available and, where unavailable, fair values were estimated based on market prices of similar instruments. Short-term
foreign exchange contracts are the only asset or liability recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. These contracts are
measured based on exchange rates at September 30, 2010 and classified as a Level 2 fair value measurement within
the fair value hierarchy.
The following table summarizes the contractual amounts of our foreign exchange contracts as of September 30, 2010.
Foreign currency amounts are translated at exchange rates as of September 30, 2010. The �Buy� amounts represent the
U.S. dollar equivalent of commitments to purchase currencies, and the �Sell� amounts represent the U.S. dollar
equivalent of commitments to sell currencies.

September 30, 2010
Currency (In millions) Buy Sell
U.S. Dollar $ 58.1
Euro $ 53.9
British pound $ 4.2
The carrying amounts and fair values of our financial instruments as of September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009
are as follows:

September 30,
2010

December 31,
2009

(In millions)
Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Cash and cash equivalents $ 307.9 $ 307.9 $ 222.7 $ 222.7
Lo10px;text-indent:32px;font-size:10pt;">The enactment of tax legislation occurring late in the
calendar year could result in the beginning of tax filing season being delayed or make it difficult
for us to make necessary changes on a timely basis to the software used by our franchisees to
prepare tax returns. Any such delays could impact our revenues and profitability in any given year.
Proposals to make fundamental changes in the way tax refunds are processed or to impose price
limitations on tax preparation, if enacted, could result in substantial losses of customers and other
risks.
Some regulators have suggested that it would be appropriate to allow taxpayers to "split" their tax
refunds, in a manner that would separate the payment of tax preparation fees from the balance of a
customer's refund. In describing these proposals, some advocates have called for a cap on tax
preparation fees that would adversely affect the ability of tax preparers to charge market prices for
tax services and could reduce income to our franchisees, and therefore, to us. Other proposals have
been advanced that would attempt to reduce tax refund fraud by significantly postponing the speed
with which refunds are processed, or even postponing the processing of refunds until after the
April 15 federal tax filing deadline. Such a change would likely have the effect of devaluing
services that allow tax customers in the early portion of the tax season to receive their refunds on a
more expedited basis that is available when electronic filing is not used, and could therefore
reduce the demand for the services we and our franchisees provide.
There can be no assurance that these proposals will be enacted at all or in their present form but if
enacted, our growth and revenues could be adversely affected.
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Our participation in government programs designed to speed access to tax refunds may result in
customer loss when the IRS fails to perform.
The IRS has responded to the increase in electronic filing by developing programs designed to
reduce a taxpayer's wait to receive a tax refund. In the past, we participated in some programs
offered by the IRS that did not perform as expected, resulting in significant delays in processing
refunds for some of our customers. Although we continue to seek to give our customers quicker
access to their refunds, doing so involves the risk of customer dissatisfaction and injury to our
reputation in the market if the IRS fails to perform, which is outside our control.
Risks Related to Our Class A Common Stock
We are controlled by our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, whose interests in our business
may be different from those of our stockholders.
John Hewitt, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, currently owns all outstanding shares of
our Class B common stock. Our Class B common stock has the power to elect, voting as a
separate class, the minimum number of directors that constitute a majority of the Board of
Directors. As a result, Mr. Hewitt will, for the foreseeable future, have significant influence over
our management and affairs, given the Board's authority to appoint or replace our senior
management, cause us
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to issue additional shares of our Class A common stock or repurchase Class A common stock,
declare dividends, or take other actions. Upon Mr. Hewitt’s death, pending the effectiveness of a
provision of our certificate of incorporation that will become effective only after we have
conducted an initial public offering or certain other triggering events occur, Mr. Hewitt’s estate
would succeed to these special voting rights. Mr. Hewitt may make decisions regarding our
Company and business that are opposed to other stockholders' interests or with which they
disagree. Mr. Hewitt's ability to elect a majority of the Board of Directors may also delay or
prevent a change of control of us, even if that change of control would benefit our stockholders,
which could deprive an investor of the opportunity to receive a premium for your Class A
common stock. The power to elect a majority of the directors may adversely affect the value of
our Class A common stock due to investors' perception that conflicts of interest may exist or arise.
To the extent that the interests of our other stockholders are harmed by the actions of Mr. Hewitt,
the price of our Class A common stock may be harmed. For information regarding the ownership
of our outstanding stock, please see the section titled "Item 12-Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters."
Because we are not required to comply with certain NASDAQ corporate governance
requirements, our stockholders may not have the same protections afforded to stockholders of
companies that are subject to all of the corporate governance requirements of the NASDAQ.
Because Mr. Hewitt owns all of the outstanding shares of our Class B common stock, and
therefore, has the ability to elect a majority of our directors, we have elected to be a "controlled
company" for the purposes of the NASDAQ listing requirements. As such, we are exempt from
certain corporate governance requirements, including the requirements that our Board of Directors
be comprised of a majority of directors who are independent under NASDAQ rules and that we
have nominating and compensation committees with members meeting the NASDAQ
independence requirements. We currently are voluntarily complying with the NASDAQ's
corporate governance standards but may choose not to in the future. If we choose not to comply
with certain of the requirements, our Board of Directors may have more directors who do not meet
the NASDAQ independence standards than they would if those standards were to apply. We may
also elect not to maintain formal nominating/corporate governance and compensation committees
or, if we maintain those committees, they may not be comprised of independent directors. In such
circumstances, you will not have the same protections afforded to stockholders of companies that
are subject to all of the corporate governance requirements of the NASDAQ, and circumstances
may occur in which the interests of Mr. Hewitt could conflict with the interests of our other
stockholders.
Our stock price may be volatile, and investors may be unable to resell their shares at or above their
acquisition price or at all.
Our stock price could be subject to wide fluctuations in response to many risk factors listed in this
section, and others beyond our control, including:
•actual or anticipated variations in our operating results from quarter to quarter;

•actual or anticipated variations in our operating results from the expectations of securities analystsand investors;
•actual or anticipated variations in our operating results from our competitors;
•fluctuations in the valuation of companies perceived by investors to be comparable to us;
•sales of Class A common stock or other securities by us or our stockholders in the future;

•changes in expectations as to our future financial performance, including financial estimates bysecurities analysts and investors;
•departures of key executives or directors;

•announcements by us or our competitors of significant contracts, acquisitions, strategicpartnerships, financing efforts or capital commitments;
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• delays or other changes in our expansion
plans;

•involvement in litigation or governmental investigations or enforcement activity;

•stock price and volume fluctuations attributable to inconsistent trading volume levels of ourshares;
•general market conditions in our industry and the industries of our customers;
•general economic and stock market conditions;
•regulatory or political developments; and
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•terrorist attacks or natural disasters.
Furthermore, the capital markets experience extreme price and volume fluctuations that have
affected and continue to affect the market prices of equity securities of many companies. These
fluctuations often have been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of those
companies. These broad market and industry fluctuations, as well as general economic, political,
and market conditions such as recessions, interest rate changes, or international currency
fluctuations may negatively impact our stock price. Trading price fluctuations may also make it
more difficult for us to use our Class A common stock as a means to make acquisitions or to use
options to purchase our Class A common stock to attract and retain employees. If our stock price
does not exceed the price at which stockholders acquired their shares, investors may not realize
any return on their investment. In the past, companies that have experienced volatility in the
market price of their stock have been subject to securities class action litigation. We may be the
target of this type of litigation in the future. Securities litigation against us could result in
substantial costs and divert our management's attention from other business concerns, which could
materially adversely affect our business, results of operations, and financial position.
A significant portion of our outstanding shares of Class A common stock may be sold into the
market, which could adversely affect our stock price.
Sales of a substantial number of shares of our Class A common stock in the public market could
occur at any time, subject to certain securities law restrictions. Sales of shares of our Class A
common stock or the perception in the market that the holders of a large number of shares of
Class A common stock intend to sell shares could reduce our stock price. As of June 23, 2015, we
have outstanding 11,920,712 shares of Class A common stock and 900,000 shares of Class B
common stock, which are convertible into shares of Class A common stock on a one-for-one basis,
assuming no exercise of our outstanding options.
At June 23, 2015, we also have approximately 1.6 million shares of our Class A common stock
reserved for issuance in connection with options and restricted stock units granted under our 1998
Stock Option Plan and the 2011 Equity and Cash Incentive Plan. These shares may also be freely
sold in the public market upon issuance and once vested.
The trading in our Class A Common Stock is limited.
Because of the number of shares of our Class A common stock held by affiliates, the volume of
typical trading in our stock on the NASDAQ Stock Market has been limited. This limitation on the
liquidity of our stock may impede the ability of our stockholders to sell shares at the time they
wish to sell them at a price that they consider reasonable or at all, and could reduce our stock price
and impede our ability to acquire other companies using our shares as consideration.
Our stock price and trading volume could decline if securities or industry analysts do not publish
research or reports about our business or if they publish misleading or unfavorable research or
reports about our business.
The trading market for our Class A common stock will depend in part on the research and reports
that securities or industry analysts publish about us or our business. As of the date of this report,
only two securities analysts engage in coverage of our Class A common stock, and if few
securities or industry analysts commence or maintain such coverage, the trading price and
liquidity for our shares could be adversely impacted. In the event we obtain securities or industry
analyst coverage, if one or more of the analysts who covers us downgrades our stock or publishes
misleading or unfavorable research about our business, our stock price could decline. If one or
more of these analysts ceases to cover us or fails to publish reports on us regularly, demand for our
stock could decrease, which could cause our stock price or trading volume to decline.
We incur increased costs and our management will face increased demands as a result of operating
as a company with public equity.
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As a company with public equity, we incur significant legal, accounting, and other expenses. In
addition, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act as well as related rules implemented by the SEC and NASDAQ
impose various requirements on companies with public equity. As a public company, we are
required to:

•prepare and distribute periodic public reports and other stockholder communications incompliance with our obligations under the federal securities laws and NASDAQ rules,

•create or expand the roles and duties of our Board of Directors and committees of the Board ofDirectors,
•institute more comprehensive financial reporting and disclosure compliance functions,
•supplement our internal accounting and auditing function,
•enhance and formalize closing procedures at the end of our accounting periods,
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•enhance our investor relations function,

•establish new or enhanced internal policies, including those relating to disclosure controls andprocedures, and

•involve and retain to a greater degree outside counsel and accountants in the activities listedabove.
Our management and other personnel have devoted a substantial amount of time to these
compliance matters. Also, these rules and regulations have increased our legal and financial
compliance costs and have made some activities more time-consuming and costly than would be
the case for a private company. For example, these rules and regulations have made it more
expensive for us to maintain director and officer liability insurance. As a result, it may be more
difficult for us to attract and retain qualified individuals to serve on our Board of Directors or as
our executive officers.
In addition, as a result of being a public company, we are subject to financial reporting and other
requirements including NASDAQ continued listing requirements that are burdensome and costly.
Our failure to timely complete our analysis of these reporting requirements could adversely affect
investor confidence in our Company and, as a result, the value of our common stock. Further, if
we fail to implement these reporting requirements, our ability to report our results of operations on
a timely and accurate basis could be impaired. In fact, in connection with restating our previously
issued annual and quarterly consolidated financial statements, we recently were delinquent in
filing our annual and quarterly reports. Consequently, we received two notices from NASDAQ in
connection with the delinquent filings, and we may be subject to NASDAQ delisting procedures if
we fail to comply with the NASDAQ continued listing requirements in the future.
We are an "emerging growth company" and our election to delay adoption of new or revised
accounting standards applicable to public companies may result in our financial statements not
being comparable to those of other public companies. As a result of this and other reduced
disclosure and governance requirements applicable to emerging growth companies, our common
stock may be less attractive to investors.
We are an "emerging growth company," as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of
2012 (the "JOBS Act") enacted in April 2012, and we intend to take advantage of certain
exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies that
are not emerging growth companies including, but not limited to, not being required to comply
with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the
"Sarbanes-Oxley Act"); the same reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive
compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements that smaller reporting companies are
permitted to provide; and exemptions from the requirements of holding a nonbinding advisory
stockholder vote on executive compensation, frequency of approval of executive compensation,
and of any golden parachute payments not previously approved. In addition, Section 107 of the
JOBS Act also provides that an emerging growth company may take advantage of the extended
transition period provided in the Securities Act of 1933 (the "Securities Act") and the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") for complying with new or revised accounting
standards. In other words, an emerging growth company may delay the adoption of certain
accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies. We are
electing to delay such adoption of new or revised accounting standards, and as a result, we may
not comply with new or revised accounting standards on the relevant dates on which adoption of
such standards is required for non-emerging growth companies. As a result of this election, our
financial statements may not be comparable to the financial statements of other public companies.
We cannot predict whether investors will find our common stock less attractive because we will
rely on these exemptions. We will remain an "emerging growth company" until the earliest of (i)
the last day of the fiscal year during which we have total annual gross revenue of $1 billion or
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more; (ii) the last day of the fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of the sale by us of
common equity securities pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act;
(iii) the date on which we have, during the previous three-year period, issued more than $1 billion
in non-convertible debt; or (iv) the date on which we are deemed to be a "large accelerated filer,"
as defined under the Exchange Act.
Although we may desire to continue to pay dividends in the future, our financial condition, debt
covenants, or Delaware law may prohibit us from doing so.
Although we initiated the payment of dividends in April 2015 and may continue to pay cash
dividends in the future, we have no obligation to do so and the payment of dividends will be at the
discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend, among other things, on our earnings, capital
requirements, and financial condition as well as our ability to dividend funds from our principal
subsidiary under the terms of our credit facility. Our ability to pay dividends will be subject to
compliance with financial covenants that are contained in our credit facility and may be restricted
by any future indebtedness that we incur or issuances of preferred stock. We cannot assure
investors that we will continue to pay dividends at any specific level or at all.
Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents, Delaware law, and our credit facility could
make an acquisition of us more difficult, limit attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove
our current management, and adversely affect the value of our Class A common stock.
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Provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws may have the
effect of delaying or preventing a change of control or changes in our management. We have two
classes of common stock, one of which is entitled to elect a majority of our Board of Directors and
is controlled by our Chairman and CEO as described above. Our second amended and restated
certificate of incorporation and bylaws will also include provisions that:

• authorize our Board of Directors to issue, without further action by the stockholders, up to
approximately 3.0 million shares of undesignated preferred stock;

•
specify that special meetings of our stockholders can be called only by our Board of Directors, the
Chair of our Board of Directors, or holders of at least 20% of the shares that will be entitled to
vote on the matters presented at such special meeting;

•establish an advance notice procedure for stockholder proposals to be brought before an annualmeeting, including proposed nominations of persons for election to our Board of Directors; and
•do not provide for cumulative voting in the election of directors.
In addition, our credit facility contains covenants that may impede, discourage, or prevent a
takeover of us. For instance, upon a change of control, we would default on our credit facility. As
a result, a potential takeover may not occur unless sufficient funds are available to repay our
outstanding debt.
These provisions may frustrate or prevent any attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove
our current management by making it more difficult for stockholders to replace members of our
Board of Directors, which is responsible for appointing the members of our management. Any
provision of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws or our debt
documents that has the effect of delaying or deterring a change of control could limit the
opportunity for our stockholders to receive a premium for their shares of our Class A common
stock. Even in the absence of a takeover attempt, the existence of these provisions may adversely
affect our stock value if they are viewed as discouraging takeover attempts in the future.
Item 1B.    Unresolved Staff Comments.
None.

Item 2.    Properties.
We own our corporate headquarters, located in five buildings, totaling approximately 106
thousand square feet. Our principal executive office is located at 1716 Corporate Landing
Parkway, Virginia Beach, Virginia 23454. We also own additional properties in Ohio, New York,
Tennessee, and Virginia which are used as Company-owned offices or leased to franchisees. The
remainder of our Company-owned offices are operated under leases. We believe that our offices
are in good repair and sufficient to meet our present and anticipated future needs.
Item 3.    Legal Proceedings.
In the ordinary course of operations, we may become a party to legal proceedings. Based upon
information currently available, management believes that such legal proceedings, in the
aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows,
or results of operations except as provided below.
ERC class action litigation. We were sued in November 2011 in federal courts in Arkansas,
California, Florida, and Illinois, and additional lawsuits were filed in federal courts in January
2012 in Maryland and North Carolina, in February 2012 in Wisconsin, and in May 2012 in New
York and Minnesota. In April 2012, a motion to consolidate all of the then-pending cases before a
single judge in federal court in the Northern District of Illinois was granted, and in June 2012, the
plaintiffs filed a new complaint in the consolidated action. The consolidated complaint alleges that
our refund transfer products formerly called electronic refund checks ("ERC") represent a form of
refund anticipation loan ("RAL") because the taxpayer is "loaned" the tax preparation fee, and that
the refund transfer product is, therefore, subject to federal truth-in-lending disclosure and state law
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requirements regulating RALs. The plaintiffs also allege disclosure violations related to the ERC
fees paid by RAL customers. The plaintiffs, therefore, claim violations of state-specific RAL and
other consumer statutes. The lawsuit purports to be a class action, and the plaintiffs allege
potential damages in excess of $5.0 million. We appealed to the United States Court of Appeals
for the Seventh Circuit a ruling that certain of the plaintiffs’ claims were not subject to arbitration.
Following mediation, the parties entered into a settlement agreement in June 2015 pursuant to
which we will establish a settlement fund of $5.3 million, inclusive of settlement administration
costs and plaintiffs’ counsel fees. The parties are in the process of arranging for the remand of the
case to the trial court, which must approve the settlement. We have preserved potential claims
against a financial product partner that was responsible for the design of a portion of our ERC
programs in the years at issue in the cases. We have also accrued the proposed settlement amount.
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TCPA class action litigation. We were sued in September 2013 in federal court in Illinois in
connection with alleged violations of the Telephone Consumer Protection Act. Plaintiff alleges
that we inappropriately made auto dialed telephone calls to cellular telephones, seeks the
certification of a nationwide class action, and claims statutory damages of $500-$1,500 per
violation. We tendered the defense of this litigation to a third party entity that had contracted with
us to solicit potential franchisees, and that third party entity acknowledged its defense and
indemnification obligations to us. However, because the third party did not have the financial
resources to satisfy its defense and indemnity obligations, we concluded that we could not rely
upon the fulfillment of those obligations. In September 2014, the Company and the plaintiffs
reached a tentative settlement of this litigation pursuant to which we will establish a settlement
fund of $3.0 million, inclusive of settlement administration costs and plaintiffs’ counsel fees. This
settlement has received the preliminary approval of the court, but remains subject to other
conditions typical in a class action. We have accrued the proposed settlement amount.
We are also party to claims and lawsuits that are considered to be ordinary, routine litigation
incidental to the business, including claims and lawsuits concerning the preparation of customers'
income tax returns, the fees charged to customers for various products and services, relationships
with franchisees, intellectual property disputes, employment matters, and contract disputes.
Although we cannot provide assurance that we will ultimately prevail in each instance, we believe
the amount, if any, we will be required to pay in the discharge of liabilities or settlements in these
claims will not have a material adverse impact on our consolidated results of operations or
financial position.
Item 4.    Mine Safety Disclosures.
Not applicable.
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PART II
Item 5.    Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities.
Market and Stock Information
Our Class A common stock has been listed on The NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol
"TAX" since July 2, 2012. We traded on the over-the-counter bulletin board from June 14, 2012
until that date. Prior to that time, there was no public market for our Class A common stock. The
following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low sale prices of our Class A
common stock on The NASDAQ Global Market.

2015 2014
Sales Price Sales Price
High Low High Low

First Quarter $35.20 $26.19 $19.42 $15.90
Second Quarter 39.19 31.31 20.99 16.28
Third Quarter 39.60 31.64 26.78 18.93
Fourth Quarter 37.03 25.69 28.00 23.88
As of April 30, 2015, our stockholders' equity consisted of the following: 11,905,156 shares of
Class A common stock, 900,000 shares of Class B common stock, and 10 shares of special voting
preferred stock. We treat as common stock equivalents exchangeable shares that may be
exchanged for 1,000,000 shares of Class A common stock. As of April 30, 2015, options to
acquire 1,343,559 shares of Class A common stock were outstanding, 958,143 of which were
immediately exercisable.
Holders of Record
As of June 23, 2015, we had approximately 180 registered record holders of our Class A common
stock and one holder of our Class B common stock. The reported closing price of our Class A
common stock on June 23, 2015 was $24.50. Wells Fargo Shareowner Services is the transfer
agent and registrar for our Class A common stock. We have no established public trading market
for our Class B common stock.
Dividends
Until our dividend paid in April 2015, we had never declared or paid a cash dividend on our
common stock. Although we have now announced a $0.16 per share quarterly cash dividend and
may continue to pay cash dividends in the future, the payment of dividends will be at the
discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend, among other things, on our earnings, capital
requirements, and financial condition. Our ability to pay dividends will also be subject to
compliance with financial covenants that are contained in our credit facility and may be restricted
by any future indebtedness that we incur or issuances of preferred stock. In addition, applicable
law requires our Board of Directors to determine that we have adequate surplus prior to the
declaration of dividends. We cannot provide an assurance that we will continue to pay dividends
at any specific level or at all.
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Share Repurchases
Our Board of Directors has approved $10.0 million of authorizations for share repurchases. These
authorizations have no specific expiration date and cash proceeds from stock option exercises
increase the amount of the authorizations. Shares repurchased from option exercises that are
net-share settled by us and shares repurchased in privately negotiated transactions are not
considered share repurchases under these authorizations. During the three months ended April 30,
2015, we repurchased shares from option exercises that were net-share settled by us as follows (in
thousands, except for share and per share amounts):

Period
Total Number
of Shares
Purchased (1)

Average
Price Paid
per Share

Total Number
of Shares
Purchased
as Part of
Publicly
Announced
Plan

Remaining
Maximum
Value
of Shares
that may
be Purchased
Under
the Plan

February 1 through February
28, 2015 — $— — $4,669

March 1 through March 31,
2015 12,817 29.26 — 5,217

April 1 through April 30, 2015 768 29.30 — 6,201
   Total 13,585 29.26 —
_______________________________________________________________________________
(1) During the three months ended April 30, 2015, all of the shares repurchased were associated
with the exercise of stock options.

During fiscal 2015, we repurchased 1,284,246 shares of our Class A common stock as shown in
the table below:

Period Total Number of
Shares Purchased

Average Price Paid
per Share

First quarter 881,172 $25.67
Second quarter 328,589 33.72
Third quarter 60,900 36.31
Fourth quarter 13,585 29.26
Total 1,284,246 28.27

On June 3, 2014, we repurchased 800,000 shares of our Class A common stock at $25.00 per share
in a privately negotiated transaction with an affiliate.
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Stock Performance Graph
The graph below compares the cumulative total return provided stockholders on the Company's
Class A common stock relative to the cumulative total returns of the Russell 2000 index and the
S&P Diversified Commercial & Professional Services index. Returns assume an initial investment
of $100 at the market close on June 14, 2012, which was the first day our stock was traded on the
over-the-counter bulletin board, and then for the periods ending April 30, 2013, 2014, and 2015.
Dividends, if any, are assumed to have been reinvested.
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Item 6.    Selected Financial Data.
The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations"
included in Item 7 below and our Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes included in
Item 15. We derived the consolidated statements of income data for the years ended April 30,
2015, 2014, and 2013 and the consolidated balance sheet data as of April 30, 2015 and 2014 from
our audited consolidated financial statements included in Item 8. The consolidated statements of
income data for the years ended April 30, 2012 and 2011 and the consolidated balance sheet data
as of April 30, 2012 and 2011 are derived from our restated unaudited consolidated financial
statements not included in this annual report. Our historical results are not necessarily indicative of
the results that may be expected in the future.

Fiscal Years Ended and as of April 30,
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(amounts in thousands, except per share, franchisees, offices,
per franchisee amounts, fee per tax return, and per office
amounts)

Consolidated Statements of
Income Data:
Revenue:
Franchise fees $6,246 $7,844 $8,721 $7,996 $8,780
AD fees 6,901 6,680 7,699 6,702 6,335
Royalties and advertising fees 80,469 78,426 73,129 70,016 66,182
Financial Products 37,058 34,512 30,345 22,903 16,507
Tax preparation fees, net of
discounts 13,877 14,295 10,148 7,026 4,789

Other revenue 17,621 17,939 17,571 16,582 15,343
Total revenue 162,172 159,696 147,613 131,225 117,936
Total operating expenses (146,780 ) (124,875 ) (116,777 ) (103,245 ) (91,245 )
Income from operations 15,392 34,821 30,836 27,980 26,691
Foreign currency translation
gain (loss) (2 ) (13 ) — 4 75

Gain on sale of
available-for-sale securities — 2,183 — — —

Interest expense (1,889 ) (1,355 ) (2,039 ) (1,854 ) (1,954 )
Income before income taxes 13,501 35,636 28,797 26,130 24,812
Income tax expense (4,811 ) (13,654 ) (11,170 ) (9,747 ) (10,142 )
Net income $8,690 $21,982 $17,627 $16,383 $14,670
Earnings per share of Class A
common stock and Class B
common stock
Basic $0.63 $1.57 $1.26 $1.17 $0.85
Diluted $0.61 $1.51 $1.25 $1.16 $0.83
Consolidated Balance Sheet
Data:
Amounts due from franchisees
and ADs less unrecognized
revenue, net of allowances

$86,680 $81,480 $85,658 $76,493 $68,196

Property, equipment, and
software, net 36,232 38,343 33,037 23,948 18,228
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Total assets 184,146 198,763 169,530 152,196 116,093
Long-term debt, including
current installments 25,397 28,488 27,683 28,985 4,458

Total stockholders' equity 98,862 110,185 81,836 67,065 52,018
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Fiscal Years Ended and as of April 30,
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(amounts in thousands, except per share, franchisees,
offices, per franchisee amounts, fee per tax return, and
per office amounts)

Other Financial and Operational Data:
Adjusted EBITDA(1) $42,787 $44,734 $40,424 $35,331 $32,205

Number of U.S. offices(2) 4,069 4,175 4,262 3,920 3,590
Number of Canadian offices(2) 259 263 258 263 255
Number of offices(2) 4,328 4,438 4,520 4,183 3,845

Number of U.S. franchisees 1,907 1,959 2,073 1,959 1,810
Number of Canadian franchisees 125 145 138 139 131
Number of franchisees 2,032 2,104 2,211 2,098 1,941

Average number of offices per U.S.
franchisee(2)(3) 2.07 2.04 1.94 1.96 1.96

Average number of offices per Canadian
franchisee(2)(3) 1.62 1.57 1.67 1.76 1.84

Average number of offices per
franchisee(2)(3) 2.04 2.01 1.93 1.95 1.95

Number of tax returns processed in U.S.
offices 1,907 1,890 1,805 1,790 1,658

Number of tax returns processed in
Canadian offices 340 311 311 285 288

Number of tax returns filed online(4) 167 187 159 109 98
Number of tax returns processed 2,414 2,388 2,275 2,184 2,044

Systemwide revenue from U.S.
offices(5) $413,200 $397,300 $358,000 $337,000 $317,000

Systemwide revenue from Canadian
offices (CN$)(5) 26,400 23,900 23,200 22,100 21,600

Systemwide revenue from Canadian
offices (US$)(5) 21,761 21,789 22,819 22,298 21,895

Systemwide revenue per U.S.
office(5)(6) $101,548 $95,162 $83,998 $85,969 $88,301

Systemwide revenue per Canadian office
(CN$)(5)(6) 101,931 90,875 89,922 84,030 84,706

Systemwide revenue per Canadian office
(US$)(5)(6) 84,021 82,848 88,446 84,783 85,863

Net average fee per U.S. tax return
processed(6) $217 $210 $198 $188 $191

Net average fee per Canadian tax return
processed (CN$)(6) 78 77 75 78 75

64 70 73 78 76
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Net average fee per Canadian tax return
processed (US$)(6)

______________________________________________________________________________
(1) We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income plus provision for income taxes, interest expense,
certain other adjustments, depreciation, amortization, and impairment charges. Please see
"Adjusted EBITDA" below for more information and for a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to
net income, the most directly comparable financial measure calculated and presented in
accordance with GAAP.
(2) We measure our number of offices per fiscal year based on franchised and Company-owned
offices open at any point during the tax season.
(3) The calculation of the average number of offices per franchisee excludes Company-owned
offices.
(4) Previously reported online return counts for fiscal years prior to 2015 have been restated to
reflect accepted e-files only. No changes were made to previously reported returns for office
counts.
(5) Our systemwide revenue represents the total tax preparation revenue generated by our
franchised and Company-owned offices. It does not represent our revenue because our franchise
royalties are derived from the operations of our franchisees. Because we maintain an infrastructure
to support systemwide operations, we consider growth in systemwide revenue to be an important
measurement.
(6) Systemwide revenue per office and the net average fee per tax return prepared reflect amounts
for our franchised and Company-owned offices.
Adjusted EBITDA
To provide additional information regarding our financial results, we have disclosed in the table
above and within this annual report Adjusted EBITDA. Adjusted EBITDA represents net income,
before income taxes, interest expense, depreciation
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and amortization, and certain other items specified below. We have provided a reconciliation
below of Adjusted EBITDA to net income, the most directly comparable GAAP financial
measure.
We have included Adjusted EBITDA in this annual report because we seek to manage our
business to achieve higher levels of Adjusted EBITDA and to improve the level of Adjusted
EBITDA as a percentage of revenue. In addition, it is a key basis upon which we assess the
performance of our operations and management. We also use Adjusted EBITDA for business
planning and the evaluation of acquisition opportunities. In particular, the exclusion of certain
expenses in calculating Adjusted EBITDA can provide a useful measure for period-to-period
comparisons. We believe the presentation of Adjusted EBITDA enhances an overall
understanding of the financial performance of and prospects for our business. Adjusted EBITDA
is not a recognized financial measure under GAAP and may not be comparable to similarly titled
measures used by other companies in our industry. Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered in
isolation from or as an alternative to net income, operating income (loss), or any other
performance measures derived in accordance with GAAP.
The following table presents a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA for each of the periods
indicated.

Fiscal Years Ended April 30,
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA
to Net Income:
Net income $8,690 $21,982 $17,627 $16,383 $14,670
Interest expense 1,889 1,355 2,039 1,854 1,954
Income tax expense 4,811 13,654 11,170 9,747 10,142
Depreciation, amortization, and
impairment charges 9,900 9,277 6,538 5,999 5,439

Impairment of online software and
acquired customer lists 8,392 — — — —

Net gain on available-for-sale
securities — (2,183 ) — — —

Costs associated with postponed IPO — — — 1,348 —
Executive severance 1,488 614 — — —
Restatement costs — 907 — — —
Restructuring charge — — 425 — —
Tentative settlements of class action
litigation cases, net of estimated
recoveries

7,617 — — — —

Stock-based compensation expense
(income) related to liability classified
awards

— (872 ) 2,625 — —

Adjusted EBITDA $42,787 $44,734 $40,424 $35,331 $32,205
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Item 7.    Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.
Overview
We are one of the leading providers of tax preparation services in the United States and Canada.
As measured by both the number of returns prepared and the number of retail offices, we are the
second largest retail preparer of individual tax returns in the United States and the second largest
retail preparer of individual tax returns in Canada. Our tax preparation services and related tax
settlement products are offered primarily through franchised locations, although we operate a
limited number of Company-owned offices each tax season. All of the offices are operated under
the Liberty Tax Service and SiempreTax+ brands.
From 2001 through 2015, we grew our number of tax offices from 508 to 4,328. See Note 1 of the
Notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements for detail of the U.S. office activity and the
number of Canadian and Company-owned offices for the years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and
2013.
Approximately 58% of our revenue for fiscal year 2015 was derived from franchise fees, AD fees,
royalties, and advertising fees, and for this reason, continued growth in and seasoning of our
franchise locations is viewed by management as the key to our future performance.
Our revenue primarily consists of the following components:

•

Franchise Fees: Our standard franchise fee per territory is $40,000, and we offer our
franchisees flexible structures and financing options for franchise fees. Franchise fee
revenue is recognized when our obligations to prepare the franchisee for operation are
substantially complete and as cash is received.

•

AD Fees: Our fees for AD areas vary based on our assessment of the revenue potential of
each AD area, and also depend on the performance of any existing franchisees within the
AD area being sold. Our ADs generally receive 50% of franchise fees, royalties, and a
portion of the interest income derived from territories located in their area. AD fees
received are recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the initial contract term of
each AD agreement, which has historically been ten years, with the cumulative amount of
revenue recognized not to exceed the amount of cash received.

•Royalties: Our franchise agreements require franchisees to pay us a base royalty typically equal to14% of the franchisee's tax preparation revenue, subject to certain specified minimums.

•
Advertising Fees: Our franchise agreements require all franchisees to pay us an advertising fee of
5% of the franchisee's tax preparation revenue, which we use primarily to fund collective
advertising efforts.

•

Financial Products: We offer two types of tax settlement financial products: refund transfer
products, which involve providing a means by which a customer may receive his or her refund
more quickly and conveniently, and refund-based loans. We earn fees from the sale of these
financial products.

•

Interest Income: We earn interest income from our franchisees and ADs related to both
indebtedness for the unpaid portions of their franchise fees and AD territory fees, and for other
loans we extend to our franchisees related to the operation of their territories. For franchise fees
and AD loans upon which the underlying revenue has not been recognized, we recognize the
interest income only to the extent of actual payment.

•
Tax Preparation Fees: We earn tax preparation fees, net of discounts, directly from both the
operation of Company-owned offices and providing tax preparation services through our online
tax return products.
For purposes of this section and throughout this annual report, all references to "fiscal 2015,"
"fiscal 2014," and "fiscal 2013" refer to our fiscal years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013,
respectively. For purposes of this section and throughout this annual report, all references to
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"year" or "years" are the respective fiscal year or years ended April 30 unless otherwise noted in
this annual report, and all references to "tax season" refer to the period between January 1 and
April 30 of the referenced year.
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Fiscal Years Ended and as of April 30,
2015 2014 2013
(amounts in thousands, except
franchisees, per office amounts, and net
average fees)

Results of Operations:
Total revenue $162,172 $159,696 $147,613
Income from operations $15,392 $34,821 $30,836
Net income $8,690 $21,982 $17,627
Other Financial and Operational Data:
Number of U.S. offices 4,069 4,175 4,262
Number of Canadian offices 259 263 258
Number of offices 4,328 4,438 4,520

Number of U.S. franchisees 1,907 1,959 2,073
Number of Canadian franchisees 125 145 138
Number of franchisees 2,032 2,104 2,211

Number of tax returns processed in U.S. offices 1,907 1,890 1,805
Number of tax returns processed in Canadian offices 340 311 311
Number of tax returns filed online (1) 167 187 159
Number of tax returns processed 2,414 2,388 2,275

Systemwide revenue from U.S. offices $413,200 $397,300 $358,000
Systemwide revenue from Canadian offices (CN$) 26,400 23,900 23,200
Systemwide revenue from Canadian offices (US$) 21,761 21,789 22,819

Number of U.S. refund transfer products funded 949 973 868

Net average fee per tax return filed in U.S. offices (1) $217 $210 $198
Net average fee per tax return filed in Canadian offices
(CN$)(1) 78 77 75

Net average fee per tax return filed in Canadian offices
(US$)(1) 64 70 73

______________________________________________________________________________
(1) Previously reported online return counts for fiscal years prior to 2015 have been restated to
reflect accepted e-files only. No changes were made to previously reported returns for office
counts.
(2) Systemwide revenue per office and the net average fee per tax return prepared reflect amounts
for our franchised and Company-owned offices.
(3) Our systemwide revenue represents the total tax preparation revenue generated by our
franchised and Company-owned offices. It does not represent
our revenue because our franchise royalties are derived from the operations of our franchisees.
Because we maintain an infrastructure to support
systemwide operations, we consider growth in systemwide revenue to be an important
measurement.
In evaluating our performance, management focuses on several metrics that we believe are key to
our continued success:
•
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Net growth in permanent office locations. The change in permanent office locations from year to
year is a function of the opening of new offices, offset by locations that our franchisees or we
close. Opening new permanent offices can be accomplished by the sale of new territories or the
opening of permanent offices in previously sold territories. During the 2015 tax season, we
stressed the importance of franchisees opening permanent locations in new territories. In fiscal
2015, on a net basis, our franchisees opened 101 permanent new offices in the U.S., compared to
closing 153 permanent offices in fiscal 2014. Prior to the 2015 tax season, Walmart substantially
changed the way in which it charged rent to our franchisees for Walmart kiosk locations. As a
result, our franchisees operated fewer such offices during the 2015 tax season and we have
deemphasized seasonal offices such as kiosks as part of our growth plans.
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We utilize our AD program to focus on areas with large underdeveloped groups of territories we
believe would benefit from the dedicated sales attention that an AD brings to our franchise sales
process. Although we intend to grow our franchise network through the sale of new AD areas,
opportunities often arise to acquire underperforming AD areas or AD areas in mature markets at
favorable terms, offering us better future profitability from the associated franchise locations.

•

Continued growth of SiempreTax+ brand. During fiscal 2015, we launched our second brand,
SiempreTax+. Given the demographic trends in the United States, the growing consumer
purchasing power of the Hispanic community, and the prospect of immigration reform, whether
through Congressional legislation or executive action, we believe serving the Hispanic community
through a separate brand that engages with customers in their preferred language and provides
ancillary services unique to their needs presents a significant office growth opportunity. For this
reason, although we had a successful launch of this brand in fiscal 2015, our ability to grow this
brand further should substantially contribute to our future ability to meet our growth goals.

•

Growth in the number of returns prepared. We strive to provide our franchisees with the resources
and training needed to grow their own revenue. One of the principal factors in that growth is
growth in the number of returns prepared. We and our franchisees prepared a total of
approximately 1.9 million returns in our U.S. offices in fiscal 2015, which was an increase of
0.9% from fiscal 2014. Our new retail offices typically experience their most rapid growth during
the first five years as they develop customer loyalty, operational experience and a referral base
within their community. The seasoning of our U.S. offices shown in the following table highlights
the relatively young age of our offices, with 1,789 offices of 4,069 operated during tax season
2015 having been operated for five or fewer years, including the 2015 tax season.

Tax Season 2015 Office Age in Years
1 2 3 4 5 6+ Total

United States:
  Franchised permanent 388 232 257 339 272 2,158 3,646
  Franchised seasonal 115 77 33 2 2 26 255
  Total U.S. franchised offices 503 309 290 341 274 2,184 3,901

  Company-owned permanent 9 1 5 9 5 89 118
  Company-owned seasonal 3 2 — — — 2 7
  Total U.S. Company-owned offices 12 3 5 9 5 91 125

Processing centers 17 8 3 8 2 5 43

Total U.S. offices 532 320 298 358 281 2,280 4,069

Canada:
  Franchised permanent 1 11 8 11 12 130 173
  Franchised seasonal 3 1 1 1 1 22 29
  Total Canadian franchised offices 4 12 9 12 13 152 202

  Company-owned permanent 2 — — — 1 44 47
  Company-owned seasonal 4 1 — — 1 4 10
  Total Canadian Company-owned offices 6 1 — — 2 48 57

Total Canadian offices 10 13 9 12 15 200 259

Total offices 542 333 307 370 296 2,480 4,328

Edgar Filing: POLYONE CORP - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 50



•
Growth in systemwide revenue. Systemwide revenue, a non-GAAP financial measure, includes
sales by both Company-owned and franchised offices. We believe systemwide revenue data is
useful in assessing consumer
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demand for our services and products, the overall success of the Liberty Tax brand and,
ultimately, the performance of the Company. Our royalty revenue is computed as a percentage of
sales made by our franchised offices, less certain deductions. Accordingly, sales by our
franchisees have a direct effect on the Company's royalty revenue and profitability. In addition,
our systemwide revenue reflects the size of the Liberty Tax system, and because the size of our
franchise system drives our management and infrastructure needs, systemwide revenue data helps
us assess those needs in comparison to other companies in our industry and other franchise
operators.

•

Our systemwide revenue in the U.S. grew by 4.0% from fiscal 2014 to 2015 and 11.0% from
fiscal 2013 to fiscal 2014. This increase in both years was the result of the continued seasoning of
our offices. We experienced a 3.1% increase in average net fee per return filed in the U.S. from
$210 in fiscal 2014 to $217 in fiscal 2015 as well as a 0.9% increase in number of tax returns filed
in the U.S. processed from 1,890,000 in fiscal 2014 to 1,907,000 in fiscal 2015.

•

Number of Company-owned offices. For the 2015 and 2014 tax seasons, respectively, we operated
a total of 182 and 216 Company-owned offices. Our Company-owned offices, including Walmart
kiosks, tend to be less successful than franchised offices. For this reason, we continue to seek to
minimize the number of Company-owned offices we operate each tax season. To the extent we
succeed in this effort, we would expect tax preparation fees to decrease, but royalties and
advertising fees to be favorably affected.

•

Growth in the number of tax settlement products obtained by U.S. customers. The total percentage
of our U.S. customers obtaining a refund transfer product decreased to 49.7% during fiscal 2015
compared to 51.5% during fiscal 2014. During fiscal 2015, the share of refund transfer products
funded through JTH Financial was 73.4% of the total refund transfer products utilized by our
customers, compared to 48.0% in fiscal 2014. As we have demonstrated our ability to offer
products through JTH Financial, we have been successful in obtaining more favorable terms from
outside vendors. Each year we analyze available tax settlement product solutions to balance risk
and maximize profit per product.
However, having grown the share of products funded through JTH Financial to more than 73% of
our total financial products last year, we recognize that the prospects for continued growth through
shifting away from externally-originated products may be limited, and that future growth of
financial products revenue will largely depend on increasing the attachment rate, increasing the
number of customers served and possible future fee increases.
Results of Operations
Fiscal year 2015 compared to fiscal year 2014
Revenues. The table below sets forth the components and changes in our revenue for the years
ended April 30, 2015 and 2014.

Fiscal Years Ended April 30,
Change

2015 2014 $ %
(dollars in thousands)

Franchise fees $6,246 $7,844 $(1,598 ) (20 )%
AD fees 6,901 6,680 221 3  %
Royalties and advertising fees 80,469 78,426 2,043 3  %
Financial products 37,058 34,512 2,546 7  %
Interest income 14,707 14,231 476 3  %
Tax preparation fees, net of discounts 13,877 14,295 (418 ) (3 )%
Other 2,914 3,708 (794 ) (21 )%
   Total revenue $162,172 $159,696 $2,476 2  %
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Our total revenue increased by $2.5 million, or 1.6%, in fiscal 2015 over fiscal 2014. This increase
was primarily due to the following:

•
A $2.5 million increase in financial products, due to our decision to originate a larger portion of
financial products through our in-house financial subsidiary, JTH Financial. In fiscal 2015 we
processed 73% of our
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financial products in-house, versus 48% in fiscal 2014. We receive more revenue on financial
products that are originated in-house than we do on those originated by third parties. This increase
in revenue was partially offset by a lower attachment rate. Our attachment rate was 49.7% of
funded returns in fiscal 2015 compared to 51.5% in fiscal 2014, partially because a lower
percentage of customers received refunds this year.

•

A $2.0 million, or 2.6% increase in royalties and advertising fees driven by a 3.1% increase in the
average net fee and a 0.9% increase in the number of returns filed by our franchised offices. This
was partially offset by a decline in Canadian royalties because 20 previously franchised Canadian
locations were operated as Company-owned offices.
These increases in revenue were partially offset by:

•

A $1.6 million decrease in franchise fees primarily attributable to receiving lower cash payments
on notes from our franchisees in fiscal 2015. Franchise fee revenue is recognized when our
obligations to prepare the franchisee for operations are substantially complete and as cash is
received. We believe the reason we received less cash payments was largely due to franchisees
borrowing more during the offseason to fund their preparations for the Affordable Care Act,
which impacted their ability to make franchise note payments.

•

A $0.8 million decrease in other revenue due to lower gains on the sale of assets to franchisees.
The largest portion of the gains on the sale of assets to franchisees are deferred and recognized as
cash is received on notes. Because our franchisees incurred higher operating expenses during tax
season, this impacted their ability to make these note payments. Since we received lower note
payments on these notes in fiscal 2015 than we did in fiscal 2014, the deferred gains recognized
were less.

•

A $0.4 million decrease in tax preparation fees primarily driven by a $1.3 million decrease in
online revenue caused by increased competition in the online market. This was partially offset by
a $0.9 million increase in Canadian tax preparation revenue because we operated a larger number
of Company-owned offices in Canada, which would have resulted in a larger offset but for a
negative impact of the exchange rate of $0.3 million.
Operating expenses. The following table details the amounts and changes in our operating
expenses in and from fiscal 2015 and fiscal 2014.

Fiscal Years Ended April 30,
Change

2015 2014 $ %
(dollars in thousands)

Employee compensation and benefits $41,079 $38,399 $2,680 7 %
Selling, general, and administrative 40,604 34,756 5,848 17 %
AD expense 28,497 27,319 1,178 4 %
Advertising 18,308 15,124 3,184 21 %
Depreciation, amortization, and impairment charges 9,900 9,277 623 7 %
Impairment of online software and acquired customer
lists 8,392 — 8,392 NA

Total operating expenses $146,780 $124,875 $21,905 18 %
Our total operating expenses increased by $21.9 million, or 18%, in fiscal 2015 compared to fiscal
2014. The largest components of this increase were as follows:

•A $2.7 million increase in employee compensation and benefit expenses during fiscal 2015 overfiscal 2014 caused primarily by the following:
◦A $2.1 million increase in salary and related expenses to support growth initiatives.
◦A $0.9 million increase in executive severance costs.

◦A $0.9 million reduction in stock compensation expense in fiscal 2014 related to a change fromliability classified awards to equity classified awards that did not recur in fiscal 2015.
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These increases were partially offset by a $1.2 million decrease in bonus expense because, due to
the Company's performance, we did not pay employee bonuses for fiscal 2015.
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◦A $5.8 million increase in selling, general, and administrative expenses during fiscal 2015 overfiscal 2014, caused primarily by the following:

◦An increase of $7.6 million related to the tentative settlements of our class action litigation cases,net of estimated recoveries.

◦An increase of $1.4 million in expenses related to our investment in SiempreTax+ and our ACAinitiatives.

◦An increase of $1.1 million in bank fees due to our decision to originate a larger portion offinancial products through our in-house financial subsidiary.
The increases were partially offset by the following:

◦A $2.9 million reduction in bad debt expense due to fewer franchisee terminations occurring infiscal 2015 compared to fiscal 2014.

◦A reduction of $0.9 million in restatement costs that occurred in fiscal 2014, but not in fiscal2015.

◦A reduction in professional fees of $0.9 million for advertising-related expenses that occurred infiscal 2014, but not in fiscal 2015.
•A $3.2 million increase in advertising expense caused primarily by the following:

◦A $1.0 million in spending on advertising above the amount required to utilize the advertisingfund established by franchisee advertising fees.

◦A $1.0 million increase related to launching the SiempreTax+ brand and advertising designed toattract new franchisees.

◦A $0.9 million increase in expenses that were spent in professional fees in fiscal 2014 but thatwere spent in advertising in fiscal 2015.

•

An increase of $0.6 million in depreciation and amortization consisting of a $2.1 million
depreciation expense related to placing a portion of LibPro software program into service, offset
by a decrease in amortization expense on Company-owned offices, which is now recorded as
assets held for sale and no longer amortized.

•

An $8.4 million impairment charge related to our online software and acquired customer lists. The
online market is increasingly competitive due to aggressive pricing actions and increased
advertising by significantly larger competitors. These factors have adversely affected our ability to
recover the carrying value of our online software and acquired customer lists. The impairment
charge was measured by the amount in which the carrying value exceeded the estimated fair value
of the online software and acquired customer lists. See Note 5 of the Notes to our Consolidated
Financial Statements for a description of the impairment related to the Company's online software
and acquired online customer lists.
Income Taxes. The following table sets forth certain information regarding our income taxes for
the fiscal years ended April 30, 2015 and 2014.

Fiscal Years Ended April 30,
Change

2015 2014 $ %
(dollars in thousands)

Income before income taxes $13,501 $35,636 $(22,135 ) (62 )%
Income tax expense 4,811 13,654 (8,843 ) (65 )%
Effective tax rate 35.6 % 38.3 %
The decrease in our income tax rate from fiscal 2014 to fiscal 2015 relates primarily to higher tax
deductions for stock option expense coupled with the decline in income before income taxes.
Net income. Our net income decreased by 60% in fiscal 2015 over fiscal 2014, primarily as a
result of higher operating expenses associated with our growth initiatives, an $8.4 million
impairment charge related to our online software and acquired customer lists, and $7.6 million in
tentative settlements of our class action litigation cases, net of estimated recoveries.
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Fiscal year 2014 compared to fiscal year 2013
Revenues. The table below sets forth the components and changes in our revenue for the years
ended April 30, 2014 and 2013.

Fiscal Years Ended April 30,
Change

2014 2013 $ %
(dollars in thousands)

Franchise fees $7,844 $8,721 $(877 ) (10 )%
AD fees 6,680 7,699 (1,019 ) (13 )%
Royalties and advertising fees 78,426 73,129 5,297 7  %
Financial products 34,512 30,345 4,167 14  %
Interest income 14,231 13,848 383 3  %
Tax preparation fees, net of discounts 14,295 10,148 4,147 41  %
Other 3,708 3,723 (15 ) —  %
Total revenue $159,696 $147,613 $12,083 8  %
Our total revenue increased by $12.1 million, or 8%, in fiscal 2014 over fiscal 2013. This increase
was primarily due to the following:

•
The $5.3 million increase in royalties and advertising fees driven by both a 5.9% increase in the
average net fee per U.S. tax return filed and a 4.7% increase in the number of U.S. returns filed by
our franchised offices.

•
The $4.2 million increase in financial products, reflecting the favorable terms we were able to
negotiate with third party financial product vendors. Our attachment rate was 51.5% of funded
returns in fiscal 2014 compared to 48.1% in fiscal 2013, which had an impact on the increase.

•

The $4.1 million increase in tax preparation fees, net of discounts, during fiscal 2014 over fiscal
2013 due to an increase in the number of returns filed though our Company-owned offices as well
as an increase in the number of online returns filed. The acquisition of certain assets of an online
tax preparation software provider in the third quarter of fiscal 2014 favorably impacted the
number of online returns filed.
These increases in revenue were partially offset by:

•
A $1.0 million decrease from fiscal 2013 to fiscal 2014 in AD fees. This decrease resulted
primarily from the repurchase of several areas during fiscal 2014 and a decrease in cash received
from the remaining ADs.

•

A $0.9 million decrease in franchise fees primarily attributable to a decrease in the number of
franchise sales because we were unable to sell franchises for a portion of the second quarter of
fiscal 2014. However, our fourth quarter franchise sales were up for fiscal 2014 over fourth
quarter fiscal 2013 due to a large number of existing franchisee expansions during our spring
selling season.
Operating expenses. The following table details the amounts and changes in our operating
expenses in and from fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013.

Fiscal Years Ended April 30,
Change

2014 2013 $ %
(dollars in thousands)

Employee compensation and benefits $38,399 $37,998 $401 1  %
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 34,756 31,212 3,544 11  %
AD expense 27,319 25,736 1,583 6  %
Advertising expense 15,124 15,293 (169 ) (1 )%
Depreciation, amortization, and impairment
charges 9,277 6,538 2,739 42  %
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Total operating expenses $124,875 $116,777 $8,098 7  %
Our total operating expenses increased by $8.1 million, or 7%, in fiscal 2014 compared to fiscal
2013. The largest components of this increase were as follows:
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•A $3.5 million increase in selling, general, and administrative expenses during fiscal 2014 overfiscal 2013 caused primarily by the following:

◦Non-recurring expenses of $0.9 million related to the restatement of our prior period financialstatements incurred during fiscal 2014.

◦A $0.9 million increase in professional fees during fiscal 2014 over fiscal 2013 causedpredominantly by increases in costs related to our marketing initiatives in fiscal 2014.

◦A $1.6 million increase in bad debt expense during fiscal 2014 over fiscal 2013 due to the increasein terminations during fiscal 2014.

•

A $2.7 million increase in depreciation, amortization, and impairment charges because we put a
portion of our LibPro tax software into service during the third quarter of fiscal 2014 and incurred
$1.3 million in depreciation expense. Also, we expensed $0.7 million more amortization during
fiscal 2014 over fiscal 2013 related to the purchase of certain assets of online tax preparation
software providers. Impairment charges increased by $0.6 million predominantly due to the
reclassification of Company-owned offices to assets held for sale in the fourth quarter of fiscal
2014.

•A $1.6 million increase in AD expense during fiscal 2014 over fiscal 2013 primarily related to anincrease in royalty revenue generated by franchisees in AD areas.
Although total employee compensation and benefits only increased by $0.4 million during fiscal
2014 compared to fiscal 2013, stock-based compensation, a component of employee compensation
and benefits, included $2.6 million in expense related to the classification of certain stock options
as liability instruments in fiscal 2013 and a subsequent reclassification of those awards as equity
instruments in fiscal 2014, resulting in a credit of $0.9 million. The remaining increase in
employee compensation and benefits was primarily caused by the $3.3 million increase in salaries
because of the increase in corporate employees required to run a growing and publicly traded
company.
Income Taxes. The following table sets forth certain information regarding our income taxes for
the fiscal years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013.

Fiscal Years Ended April 30,
Change

2014 2013 $ %
(dollars in thousands)

Income before income taxes $35,636 $28,797 $6,839 24 %
Income tax expense 13,654 11,170 2,484 22 %
Effective tax rate 38.3 % 38.8 %
The increase in our income tax expense from fiscal 2013 to fiscal 2014 relates not only to an
increase in income, but also to an increase in our effective tax rate due to a decrease in allowable
tax credits and an increase in our state tax rate.
Net income. Our net income increased by 25% in fiscal 2014 over fiscal 2013, reflecting an
increase in operating income of 13%. Also, during fiscal 2014 we sold available-for-sale securities
for a realized gain of $2.2 million, which is recorded in other income.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview of factors affecting our liquidity
Seasonality of cash flow. Our tax return preparation business is seasonal, and most of our revenues
and cash flow are generated during the period from late January through April 30. Following each
tax season, from May 1 through late January of the following year, we rely significantly on excess
operating cash flow from the previous season, from cash payments made by franchisees and ADs
who purchase new territories and areas prior to the next tax season, and on the use of our credit
facility to fund our operating expenses and invest in the future growth of our business. Our
business has historically generated a strong operating cash flow from operations on an annual
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basis. We devote a significant portion of our cash resources during the off season to finance the
working capital needs of our franchisees. We have also incurred significant expenditures in the
development of our LibPro tax software and anticipate spending approximately $4.8 million
related to this project during fiscal 2016.
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Credit facility. In October 2014, the Company amended its credit facility. The amended credit
facility consists of a $21.2 million term loan and a revolving credit facility that currently allows
borrowing of up to $203.8 million with an accordion feature that permits the Company to request
an increase in availability of up to an additional $50.0 million. Outstanding borrowings accrue
interest, which is paid monthly, at a rate of the one-month London Interbank Offered Rate
("LIBOR") plus a margin ranging from 1.50% to 2.25% depending on the Company's leverage
ratio. At April 30, 2015 and 2014, the interest rate was 1.8% and 1.78%, respectively, and the
average interest rate paid during the fiscal year ended April 30, 2015 was 1.79%. A commitment
fee that varies from 0.25% to 0.50% depending on the Company's leverage ratio on the unused
portion of the credit facility is paid monthly. The indebtedness is collateralized by substantially all
the assets of the Company and both loans mature on April 30, 2019 (except as to the commitments
of one lender under the revolving credit facility, which mature on September 30, 2017).
Under our credit facility, we are subject to a number of covenants that could potentially restrict
how we carry out our business, or that require us to meet certain periodic tests in the form of
financial covenants. The restrictions we consider to be material to our ongoing business include
the following:

•We must satisfy a "leverage ratio" test that is based on our outstanding indebtedness at the end of
each fiscal quarter.
•We must satisfy a "fixed charge coverage ratio" test at the end of each fiscal quarter.

•We must reduce the outstanding balance under our revolving loan to zero for a period of at least
45 consecutive days each fiscal year.
In addition, were we to experience certain types of changes in control affecting Mr. Hewitt's
continuing control of us, or certain changes to the composition of our Board of Directors, we
might become subject to an event of default under our credit facility, which could result in the
acceleration of our obligations under that facility.
Our credit facility also contains customary affirmative and negative covenants, including
limitations on indebtedness, limitations on liens and negative pledges, limitations on investments,
loans and acquisitions, limitations on mergers, consolidations, liquidations and dissolutions,
limitations on sales of assets, limitations on certain restricted payments and limitations on
transactions with affiliates, among others.
Franchisee lending and potential exposure to credit loss. A substantial portion of our cash flow
during the year is utilized to provide funding to our franchisees and ADs. At April 30, 2015, our
total balance of loans to franchisees for working capital and equipment loans, representing cash
we had advanced to the franchisees, was $16.5 million. In addition, at that date, our franchisees
and ADs together owed us an additional $77.5 million, less unrecognized revenue of $38.6
million, for amounts representing the unpaid purchase price for franchise territories, or areas
comprising clusters of territories, and other amounts owed to us for royalties and other amounts
for which our franchisees and ADs had outstanding payment obligations.
Our actual exposure to potential credit loss associated with franchisee loans is less than the
aggregate amount of those loans because a significant portion of those loans are to franchisees
located within AD areas, where our AD is ultimately entitled to a substantial portion of the
franchise fee and royalty revenues represented by some of these loans. For this reason, the amount
of indebtedness of franchisees to us is effectively offset in part by our related payable obligation to
ADs in respect of franchise fees and royalties. As of April 30, 2015, the total indebtedness of
franchisees to us where the franchisee is located in an AD area was $53.3 million but $24.3
million of that total indebtedness represents amounts ultimately payable to ADs as their share of
franchise fees and royalties.
Our franchisees make electronic return filings for their customers utilizing our facilities. Our
franchise agreements allow us to obtain repayment of amounts due to us from our franchisees
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through an electronic fee intercept program before our franchisees receive the net proceeds from
tax preparation and other fees they have charged to their customers on tax returns associated with
tax settlement products. Therefore, we are able to minimize the nonpayment risk associated with
amounts outstanding from franchisees by obtaining direct electronic payment in the ordinary
course throughout the tax season. Our credit risk associated with amounts outstanding to ADs is
also mitigated by our electronic fee intercept program, which enables us to obtain repayments of
amounts that would otherwise flow through to ADs as their share of franchise fee and royalty
payments, to the extent of an AD's indebtedness to us.
The unpaid amounts owed to us from our franchisees and ADs are collateralized by the underlying
franchise or area and, when the franchise or area owner is an entity, are generally guaranteed by
the owners of the respective entity. Accordingly, to the extent a franchisee or AD does not satisfy
its payment obligations to us, we may repossess the underlying franchise or area in order to resell
it in the future. At April 30, 2015, we had an investment in impaired accounts and notes receivable
and related interest receivable of approximately $17.0 million. We consider accounts and
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notes receivable to be impaired if the amounts due exceed the fair value of the underlying
franchise and estimate an allowance for doubtful accounts based on that excess. Amounts due
include the recorded value of the accounts and notes receivable reduced by the allowance for
uncollected interest, amounts due to ADs for their portion of franchisee receivables, any related
unrecognized revenue and amounts owed to the franchisee or AD by us. In establishing the fair
value of the underlying franchise, we consider net fees of open territories and the number of
unopened territories. At April 30, 2015, our allowance for doubtful accounts for impaired accounts
and notes receivable was $6.6 million. There were no significant concentrations of credit risk with
any individual franchisee or AD as of April 30, 2015, and we believe that our allowance for
doubtful accounts as of April 30, 2015 is adequate for our existing loss exposure. We closely
monitor the performance of our franchisees and ADs, and will adjust our allowances as
appropriate if we determine that the existing allowances are inadequate to cover estimated losses.
Dividends. Until our dividend paid in April 2015, we had never declared or paid a cash dividend
on our common stock. Although we have now announced a $0.16 per share quarterly cash
dividend and may continue to pay cash dividends in the future, the payment of dividends will be at
the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend, among other things, on our earnings,
capital requirements, and financial condition. Our ability to pay dividends will also be subject to
compliance with financial covenants that are contained in our credit facility and may be restricted
by any future indebtedness that we incur or issuances of preferred stock. In addition, applicable
law requires our Board of Directors to determine that we have adequate surplus prior to the
declaration of dividends. We cannot provide an assurance that we will continue to pay dividends
at any specific level or at all. See "Item 5—Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related
Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities."
Sources and uses of cash
Operating activities
In fiscal 2015, our cash provided from operating activities declined $19.0 million from the cash
provided in fiscal 2014. This reduction was driven by:

•

A $4.8 million reduction in income taxes payable, resulting from excess tax benefits recognized
during the year for stock option exercises. There is a corresponding increase in cash flows from
financing activities as a result of such excess tax benefits. These excess tax benefits will reduce
the amount of income taxes we would otherwise owe and pay in cash in fiscal 2016.
•A $4.1 million increase in cash tax payments in fiscal 2015 compared to fiscal 2014.

•Higher operating expenses associated with investments we made to drive growth, includingSiempreTax+ and our ACA initiatives.

•Lower collections from franchisees partially offset by delayed payments of certain expensestypically paid by year end.
In fiscal 2014, we generated $15.0 million more cash from operating activities than in fiscal 2013.
This increase was largely due to higher net income as well as increased cash payments from our
franchisees driven by earlier IRS funding.
Investing activities
In fiscal 2015, we utilized $6.6 million more for investing activities compared to fiscal 2014. The
items that contributed to this increase included $5.2 million in proceeds from the sale of
available-for-sale securities received in fiscal 2014 that did not recur in fiscal 2015, and a $2.3
million increase in cash paid in fiscal 2015 for the purchase of property, equipment and software,
primarily land and two buildings in Virginia Beach, Virginia. These decreases were partially offset
by an increase of $0.8 million in cash received in fiscal 2015 from the sales of Company-owned
stores and AD rights. Although we issued $17.4 million more in operating loans to franchisees in
fiscal 2015, that amount was partially offset by $17.1 million in higher payments received.
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In fiscal 2014, we utilized $9.6 million less cash for investing activities compared to fiscal 2013.
Some of the items that contributed to the decrease in cash usage were the sale of securities in
fiscal 2014 generating proceeds of $5.2 million compared to the purchase of securities in 2013 for
$3.0 million; a net decrease of $2.5 million in the amount of operating loans issued to franchisees,
net of payments received from franchisees, in fiscal 2014 compared to fiscal 2013; and a $2.8
million reduction in the purchase of property and equipment in fiscal 2014 compared to fiscal
2013 primarily due to the purchase of a building in fiscal 2013. These decreases in cash usage for
investing activities were partially offset by a $2.7 million increase in cash paid to purchase AD
rights, Company-owned offices, and acquired customer lists and a decrease of $1.2 million in cash
received from the sale of Company-owned offices and AD rights in fiscal 2014 compared to fiscal
2013.
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Financing activities
In fiscal 2015, we used $26.3 million more cash from financing activities compared to fiscal 2014
because:

•We utilized $23.0 million more for common stock repurchases, of which $20.0 million was
expended in a privately negotiated transaction with an affiliate.
•We used $2.2 million to pay a dividend in fiscal 2015.
•We collected $ 2.0 million less in proceeds from the exercise of stock options.
•We paid $3.4 million more related to our long-term debt in fiscal 2015 compared to 2014.
This use of cash was offset by a $4.8 million benefit related to the excess tax benefit of stock
option exercises. Excess tax benefits result when the intrinsic value of exercised stock-based
awards exceeds the amount previously recognized as compensation expense.
In fiscal 2014, we utilized $3.4 million less cash for financing activities compared to fiscal 2013.
This decrease in usage was predominantly caused by a $10.2 million increase in the proceeds
received from the exercise of stock options net of repurchases of common stock of $6.6 million in
fiscal 2014 over fiscal 2013.
Future cash needs and capital requirements
Operating cash flow needs. We believe that our seven year credit facility entered into on April 30,
2012 will be sufficient to support our cash flow needs for the foreseeable future.
The maximum balance of our revolving credit facility during fiscal 2015 was $133.8 million on
January 29, 2015. By April 2, 2015, we paid the entire balance of our revolving credit facility. At
April 30, 2015, using the leverage ratio applicable under our loan covenants at the end of each
fiscal year, our maximum unused borrowing capacity was $108.4 million.
Our credit facility also contains a requirement that we reduce the balance of our revolving loan to
zero for a period of at least 45 consecutive days each fiscal year. However, because our term loan
will remain outstanding during that 45 day period, and given our historic cash flow experience at
the beginning and end of each fiscal year, we do not anticipate that the unavailability of our
revolving loan during that 45 day period each fiscal year will adversely affect our cash flow. As of
June 14, 2015, we had maintained a zero balance on our revolver for the required 45 days and thus
have already met the requirement for fiscal 2016.
Several factors could affect our cash flow in future periods, including the following:

•The extent to which we extend additional operating financing to our franchisees and ADs, beyondthe levels of prior periods.
•The extent and timing of remaining expenditures related to our LibPro tax software.
•The cash flow effect of stock option exercises.
•The extent to which we engage in stock repurchases.

•Our ability to generate fee and other income related to tax settlement products in light ofregulatory pressures on us and our business partners.

•
The extent to which we repurchase AD areas, which will involve the use of cash in the short-term,
but improve cash receipts in future periods from what would have been the AD's share of royalties
and franchise fees.

•The extent, if any, to which our Board of Directors elects to continue to declare dividends on ourcommon stock.
Effect of our credit facility covenants on our future performance. Our credit facility, which
matures on April 30, 2019, imposes several restrictive covenants, including a covenant that
requires us to maintain a "leverage ratio" of not more than 4.5:1 at the end of each fiscal quarter
ending January 31 and a ratio of not more than 3:1 at the end of each other fiscal quarter. The
higher permitted leverage ratio at the end of the January 31 quarter reflects the fact that as of that
date, we have typically extended significant credit to our franchisees for working capital and other
needs that is not reflected in revenue that we receive from our franchisees until the period
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beginning in February each year. At January 31, 2015 and April 30, 2015, we had a leverage ratio
of 3.04:1 and 0.57:1, respectively.
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Our leverage ratio at April 30, 2015 reflected the fact that we had no balance outstanding on our
revolving credit facility at that date and a $20.5 million balance under our term loan. The leverage
ratio is measured only at the end of each fiscal quarter, and so there may be times at which we
exceed the quarter-end leverage ratio during the quarter, which we are permitted to do provided
that our leverage ratio is within the allowable ratio at quarter-end.
We continue to be obligated under our credit facility to satisfy a fixed charge coverage ratio test
which requires that ratio to be not less than 1.50:1 at the end of every fiscal quarter. At January 31,
2015 and April 30, 2015, our fixed charge coverage ratios were 3.00:1 and 2.84:1, respectively.
We were in compliance with the ratio tests described in this section as of April 30, 2015. We
expect to be able to manage our cash flow and our operating activities in such a manner that we
will continue to be able to satisfy our obligations under the credit facility for the remainder of the
term of that facility.
As noted above, although we are subject under our credit facility to a requirement that we reduce
the balance of our revolving loan to zero for a period of at least 45 consecutive days each fiscal
year, we do not believe that requirement will affect our cash flow or future performance.
Seasonality of Operations
Given the seasonal nature of the tax return preparation business, we have historically generated
and expect to continue to generate most of our revenues during the period from January 1 through
April 30. For example, in fiscal 2015 and fiscal 2014, we earned 29% and 26% of our revenues
during our fiscal third quarter ended January 31 and 90% and 90% of our revenues during the
combined fiscal third and fourth quarters of 2015 and 2014, respectively. We historically operate
at a loss through the first eight months of each fiscal year, during which we incur costs associated
with preparing for the upcoming tax season.
Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
From time to time, we have been party to interest rate swap agreements. These swaps effectively
changed the variable-rate of our credit facility into a fixed rate credit facility. Under the swaps, we
received a variable interest rate based on the one month LIBOR and paid a fixed interest rate. Our
most recent interest rate swap agreements expired in March 2013, and none were outstanding at
April 30, 2015 or 2014. We may enter into interest rate swap agreements in the future if we
determine that it is appropriate to hedge our interest rate risk.
We also enter into forward contracts to eliminate exposure related to foreign currency fluctuations
in connection with the short-term advances we make to our Canadian subsidiary in order to fund
personal income tax refund discounting for our Canadian operations. At April 30, 2015 and 2014,
there were no forward contracts outstanding, but we expect to enter into forward contracts in the
future during the Canadian tax season.
Commitments and Contingencies
The following table sets forth certain of our contractual obligations as of April 30, 2015.

Contractual Obligations

Total Less than
1 Year

1 - 3
Years 3 - 5 Years More than5 Years

(dollars in thousands)
Long-term debt obligations(1) $27,074 $4,370 $7,460 $15,244 $—
Capital lease obligations 38 33 5 — —
Operating lease obligations(2) 5,586 2,819 2,378 349 40
Purchase obligations(3) 10,424 6,525 3,899 — —
   Total contractual obligations $43,122 $13,747 $13,742 $15,593 $40
_______________________________________________________________________________
(1) Amounts include mandatory principal payments on long-term debt as well as estimated interest
of $469, $877, $369, and $0 for less than 1 year, 1-3 years, 3-5 years, and more than 5 years,
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respectively. Interest calculated for future periods was based on the interest rate at April 30, 2015.
The actual interest rate will vary based on LIBOR and our leverage ratio.
(2) We sublease most of the office spaces represented by this line item and anticipate sublease
receipts from franchisees of $1,323, $970, $170, and $0 for less than 1 year, 1-3 years, 3-5 years,
and more than 5 years, respectively.
(3) Amounts are primarily for advertising expense and for software licenses, maintenance, and
development.
Critical Accounting Policies
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Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. The following critical accounting policies may affect
reported results.
Revenue Recognition. We recognize franchise fees when our obligations to prepare the franchise
for operation have been substantially completed and cash has been received.
AD rights have historically been granted for a term of ten years. We recently changed the term of
new and renewal AD contracts to six years. AD fees are recognized as revenue on a straight-line
basis over the initial contract term of each AD agreement with the cumulative amount of revenue
recognized not to exceed the amount of cash received. Amounts due to ADs for their services
under an area development agreement are expensed as the related franchise fees and royalty
revenues are recognized.
Royalties and advertising fees are recognized as franchise territories generate sales.
Tax return preparation fees and financial products revenue are recognized as revenue in the period
the related tax return is filed for the customer. Discounts for promotional programs are recorded at
the time the return is filed and are recorded as reductions to revenues.
Interest income is recognized when cash is received for notes associated with franchise fees, AD
fees, and customer lists. For all other notes, interest income is recognized when earned, and is
recorded net of an allowance.
Gains on sales of Company-owned offices are recognized when the purchase price is paid. Losses
on sales of Company-owned offices are recognized immediately.
Long-Lived Assets. We review our long-lived assets, such as property, plant and equipment, and
purchased intangibles subject to amortization, for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. We measure
recoverability by comparison of the carrying value of an asset to its estimated undiscounted future
cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. We recognize and measure potential impairment
at the lowest level where cash flows are individually identifiable. If the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, we recognize an impairment charge equal to the
amount by which the carrying value of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. We determine
fair value through various valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models, quoted
market values, and third-party independent appraisals. If assets are to be disposed of, we
separately present these assets in the balance sheet and report them at the lower of the carrying
amount or fair value less selling costs, and no longer depreciate them. When we have assets
classified as held for sale, we present them separately in the appropriate asset sections of the
balance sheet.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. Our allowance for doubtful accounts represents our best
estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in our existing accounts receivable and notes
receivable. Because the repayment of accounts receivable and notes receivable are dependent on
the performance of the underlying franchises, at the end of each reporting period we estimate the
amount of the allowance for uncollectible accounts based on a comparison of amounts due to the
estimated fair value of the underlying franchise.
Stock Compensation Expense. For equity classified employee stock-based compensation, we
record costs of our employee stock-based compensation based on the grant-date fair value of
awards using the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model. For liability classified awards we
record costs based on the fair value at the reporting date. We recognize compensation costs for an
award that has a graded vesting schedule on a straight-line basis over the service period for the
entire length of the stock option award.
Potential effect of JOBS Act. The JOBS Act contains provisions that, among other things, relax
certain reporting requirements for qualifying public companies. We are an "emerging growth
company" and under the JOBS Act will be allowed to comply with new or revised accounting
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pronouncements based on the effective date for private (i.e., not publicly traded) companies. We
are electing the ability to delay the adoption of new or revised accounting standards, and as a
result, we may not elect to comply with new or revised accounting standards on the relevant dates
on which adoption of those standards is required for non-emerging growth companies.
Critical Accounting Estimates
Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP. In connection with
the preparation of our financial statements, we are required to make assumptions and estimates
about future events and apply judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue, expenses, and the related disclosures. We base our assumptions, estimates, and
judgments on historical experience, current trends, and other factors that management believes to
be relevant at the time our consolidated financial statements are prepared. On a regular basis, we
review the accounting policies, assumptions, estimates, and judgments to ensure that our financial
statements are presented fairly and in

50

Edgar Filing: POLYONE CORP - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 71



Table of Contents

accordance with GAAP. However, because future events and their effects cannot be determined
with certainty, actual results could differ from our assumptions and estimates, and such differences
could be material.
Our significant accounting policies are discussed in Note 1 of the Notes to our Consolidated
Financial Statements. We believe that the following accounting estimates are the most critical to
aid in fully understanding and evaluating our reported financial results, and they require our most
difficult, subjective, or complex judgments resulting from the need to make estimates about the
effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. We have reviewed these critical accounting
estimates and related disclosures with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors.

Description Judgments and Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ
From Assumptions

Allowance for doubtful
accounts
We establish our allowance
for doubtful accounts for our
trade accounts receivable and
notes receivable based on a
comparison of the amount
due to the estimated fair
value of the underlying
franchise. In establishing the
fair value of the underlying
franchise, management
considers net fees of open
offices and the number of
unopened offices.

Our calculation of the
allowance requires
management to make
assumptions regarding the fair
value of the franchise to
which the account relates.

A 10% decrease in the fair
value of franchise territories
at April 30, 2015 would have
increased our allowance for
doubtful accounts by
approximately $1.2 million at
that date.

Long-lived assets
Long-lived assets other than
goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible assets, which are
separately tested for
impairment, are evaluated for
impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying
value may not be
recoverable. When
evaluating long-lived assets
for potential impairment, we
first compare the carrying
value of the asset to the
asset's estimated future cash
flows (undiscounted and
without interest charges). If
the estimated future cash
flows are less than the
carrying value of the asset,
we calculate an impairment
loss. The impairment loss

Our calculation of
impairment, if any, requires
management to make
assumptions regarding the fair
value of the long-lived asset.

We have not made any
material changes in the
accounting methodology we
use to assess impairment loss
during the past three fiscal
years. We do not believe there
is a reasonable likelihood that
there will be a material
change in the estimates or
assumptions we use to
calculate long-lived asset
impairment losses. However,
if actual results are not
consistent with our estimates
and assumptions used in
estimating future cash flows
and asset fair values, we may
be exposed to losses that
could be material. For AD
rights, a 10% decrease in the
estimated future cash flows
would not result in any
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calculation compares the
carrying value of the asset to
the asset's estimated fair
value, which may be based
on estimated future cash
flows (discounted and with
interest charges). We
recognize an impairment loss
if the amount of the asset's
carrying value exceeds the
asset's estimated fair value. If
we recognize an impairment
loss, the adjusted carrying
amount of the asset becomes
its new cost basis. For a
depreciable long-lived asset,
the new cost basis will be
depreciated (amortized) over
the remaining useful life of
that asset.

incremental loss. For assets
acquired from franchisees, a
10% decrease in the fair value
would result in an impairment
loss of less than $0.1 million.
For assets held for sale, a 10%
decrease in the fair value
would increase our
impairment by approximately
$0.2 million.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards
In April 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards
Update ("ASU") 2014-08, Presentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205) and Property, Plant,
and Equipment (Topic 360). This update changes the criteria for reporting discontinued operations
for all public and nonpublic entities as well as requiring new disclosures about discontinued
operations and disposals of components of an entity that do not qualify for discontinued
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operations reporting. Public business entities should apply the amendments in this update
prospectively to all disposals of components of an entity and all business or nonprofit activities
that, on acquisition, are classified as held for sale that occur within annual periods beginning on or
after December 15, 2014, and interim periods within those years. The adoption of the new
guidance is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Topic 606), which requires an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be
entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers. The ASU will replace most
existing revenue recognition guidance in GAAP when it becomes effective. The new standard is
effective for the Company on May 1, 2017, although the FASB could delay the effective date to
May 1, 2018. Early application is not permitted. The standard permits the use of either the
retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. The Company is evaluating the effect that
ASU 2014-09 will have on its condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.
The Company has not yet selected a transition method nor has it determined the effect of the
standard on its ongoing financial reporting.
In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-02, Consolidation (Topic 810), which amends
certain requirements for determining whether a variable interest entity must be consolidated. The
amendments are effective for public business entities for fiscal years, and for interim periods
within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2015. The adoption of the new guidance is
not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s condensed consolidated financial
statements.
Item 7A.    Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
Foreign exchange risk
We are subject to inherent risks attributed to operating in more than one country. Most of our
revenues, expenses, and borrowings are denominated in U.S. dollars. Our operations in Canada,
including the advances we make to our Canadian subsidiary, are denominated in Canadian dollars,
and are, therefore, subject to foreign currency fluctuations. For fiscal 2015, a 5% change in the
exchange rate of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar would have had less than a $0.1
million impact on our net income and a $0.6 million impact on our total assets at April 30, 2015.
We use, and may continue to use in the future, derivative financial instruments, such as forward
contracts, to manage foreign currency exchange rate risks. See "Item 7—Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Off Balance Sheet Arrangements."
Interest rate risk
We are subject to interest rate risk in connection with our credit facility, which provides for
borrowings of up to a total of $203.8 million and bears interest at variable rates. Assuming our
revolving loan is fully drawn and including the full balance of our term loan, each eighth of a
percentage point change in interest rates would result in a $0.3 million change in annual interest
expense on our credit facility. From time to time, we have entered into hedging instruments
involving the exchange of floating for fixed rate interest payments to reduce interest rate volatility.
See " Item 7—Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Off Balance Sheet Arrangements."
Item 8.    Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
Our financial statements are annexed to this report beginning on page F-1.
Item 9.    Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure.
None.
Item 9A.    Controls and Procedures.
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The Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance
that information required to be disclosed in the Company’s reports filed under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules
and forms, including, without limitation, that such information is accumulated and communicated
to Company management, including the Company’s principal executive and financial officer, as
appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
The Company, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management,
including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated
the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls
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and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of
April 30, 2015. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that, as of April 30, 2015, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were
effective in providing reasonable assurance that material information is recorded, processed,
summarized, and reported by management of the Company on a timely basis in order to comply
with the Company’s disclosure obligations under the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder.
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange
Act). The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable
assurance to the Company’s management and Board of Directors regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with GAAP.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only
reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.
Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
as of April 30, 2015. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control –
Integrated Framework (1992). Based on this assessment, management believes that, as of April 30,
2015, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective based on those criteria.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
During the quarter ended April 30, 2015, there were no changes that materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
Item 9B.    Other Information.
None.
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PART III
Item 10.    Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance.
The information required by this item will be provided by being incorporated herein by reference
to the Company’s definitive proxy statement for the 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
Item 11.    Executive Compensation.
The information required by this item will be provided by being incorporated herein by reference
to the Company’s definitive proxy statement for the 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
Item 12.    Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management And Related
Stockholder Matters.
The information required by this item will be provided by being incorporated herein by reference
to the Company’s definitive proxy statement for the 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
Item 13.    Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.
The information required by this item will be provided by being incorporated herein by reference
to the Company’s definitive proxy statement for the 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
Item 14.    Principal Accounting Fees and Services.
The information required by this item will be provided by being incorporated herein by reference
to the Company’s definitive proxy statement for the 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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PART IV
Item 15.    Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
(a)Financial Statements.
The following financial statements of the Company are included in Item 8 of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K:
Audited Financial Statements for the Years Ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of April 30, 2015 and 2014 F-2
Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended April 30, 2015,
2014, and 2013 F-4

Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity for the Year Ended April 30, 2015 F-5
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity for the Year Ended April 30, 2014 F-6
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity for the Year Ended April 30, 2013 F-7
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and
2013 F-8

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-10
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(b)Exhibits.
Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

3.1
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of JTH Holding, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Form S-1, File No. 333-176655 filed on
September 2, 2011).

3.2
Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K, File No. 001-35588 filed on
July 15, 2014).

3.3 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Liberty Tax, Inc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Form 8-K, File No. 001-35588 filed on July 15, 2014).

4.1

Share Exchange Agreement among DataTax Business Services Limited, Liberty Tax
Holding Corporation, Liberty Tax Service Inc. and JTH Tax, Inc. dated as of
October 16, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form S-1, File
No. 333-176655 filed on September 2, 2011).

4.2
Support Agreement between JTH Tax, Inc. and Liberty Tax Holding Corporation
dated as of October 16, 2001(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Form S-1,
File No. 333-176655 filed on September 2, 2011).

4.3 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Liberty Tax, Inc. (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.6 to Form 8-K, File No. 001-35588 filed on September 3, 2014).

4.4 Form of Indenture with respect to Senior Debt Securities (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.2 to Form S-3, File No. 333-199579 filed on October 23, 2014).

4.5
Form of Indenture with respect to Subordinated Debt Securities (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Form S-3, File No. 333-199579 filed on October 23,
2014).

10.1
JTH Holding, Inc. 2011 Equity and Cash Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to Amendment No. 3 to Form S-1, File No. 333-176655 filed on
February 3, 2012).

10.2 JTH Tax, Inc. Stock Option Plan dated as of May 1, 1998 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to Form S-1, File No. 333-176655 filed on September 2, 2011).

10.3
Form of Stock Option Agreement under Stock Option Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Form S-1, File No. 333-176655 filed on September 2,
2011).

10.4
Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for Employees via JTH Holding, Inc.
2011 Equity and Cash Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to
Amendment No. 5 to Form S-1, File No. 333-176655 filed on October 15, 2012).

10.5
Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Employees via JTH Holding, Inc.
2011 Equity and Cash Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to
Form 10-K, File No. 001-35588 filed on October 1, 2013).

10.6
Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement dated as of April 30, 2012 among JTH
Holding, Inc. and SunTrust Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to
Amendment No. 1 to Form 10, File No. 000-54660 filed on May 18, 2012).

10.7
Security Agreement among JTH Holding, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries and
SunTrust Bank dated as of April 30, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8
to Amendment No. 1 to Form 10, File No. 000-54660 filed on May 18, 2012).

10.8
Pledge Agreement among JTH Holding, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries and
SunTrust Bank dated as of April 30, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9
to Amendment No. 1 to Form 10, File No. 000-54660 filed on May 18, 2012).

10.9
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Subsidiary Guaranty Agreement among certain subsidiaries of JTH Holding, Inc.
and SunTrust Bank dated April 30, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10
to Amendment No. 1 to Form 10, File No. 000-54660 filed on May 18, 2012).

10.10

Waiver and Amendment to Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement dated as of
December 19, 2012 among JTH Holding, Inc. and SunTrust Bank (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K, File No. 001-35588 filed on December 26,
2012).

10.11
Supplement and Joinder Agreement dated as of December 28, 2012 among JTH
Holding, Inc. and SunTrust Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form
8-K, File No. 001-35588 filed on December 28, 2012).

10.12
Waiver to Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement with SunTrust Bank as
Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K, File
No. 001-35588 filed on March 12, 2013).

10.13
Standstill Agreement between JTH Holding, Inc., SunTrust Bank and certain of JTH
Holding, Inc.'s subsidiaries dated as of August 5, 2013 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K, File No. 001-35588 filed on August 6, 2013).
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Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

10.14
Waiver to Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement with SunTrust Bank as
Administrative Agent dated as of August 29, 2013 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K, File No. 001-35588 filed on August 29, 2013).

10.15
Supplement and Joinder Agreement dated October 3, 2014 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Form 8-K, File No. 001-35588 filed on October 6, 2014).

10.16
Second Amendment to Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement dated October
3, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K, File No. 001-35588
filed on October 6, 2014).

10.17 Form of Franchise Agreement for United States Franchisees (filed herewith).

10.18 Form of Area Developer Agreement for United States Area Developers (filed
herewith).

10.19
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement for John T. Hewitt dated June 12,
2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Form 8-K, File No. 001-35588
filed on June 12, 2015).

10.20
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement for James J. Wheaton dated June 1,
2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Form 8-K, File No. 000-54660
filed on June 14, 2012).

10.21
Employment Agreement for Kathleen Donovan dated February 1, 2014
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K, File No. 001-35588 filed on
January 24, 2014).

10.22 Employment Agreement for Richard G. Artese dated May 1, 2014 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Form 10-K, File No. 001-35588 filed on June 26, 2014).

10.23
Employment Agreement for Mark F. Baumgartner dated June 1, 2012 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Form 8-K, File No. 000-54660 filed on June 14,
2012).

10.24
Employment Agreement for Robert J. Lougen, Jr. dated October 10, 2014
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K, File No. 001-35588 filed on
October 14, 2014).

21.1 Subsidiaries of Liberty Tax, Inc. (filed herewith).
23.1 Consent of KPMG LLP (filed herewith).

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes
Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes
Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes
Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes
Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith).
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

LIBERTY TAX, INC.
(Registrant)

Dated: July 1, 2015

By: /s/ JOHN T. HEWITT
John T. Hewitt
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of
the Board
(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: July 1, 2015

By: /s/ KATHLEEN E. DONOVAN
Kathleen E. Donovan
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Dated: July 1, 2015

By: /s/ THOMAS S. DANIELS
Thomas S. Daniels
Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that each of the undersigned whose signature appears
below constitutes and appoints John T. Hewitt and Kathleen E. Donovan, his true and lawful
attorneys-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution for him and on his behalf, and
in his name, place, and stead, in any and all capacities to execute and sign any and all amendments
or post-effective amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K and to file the same with all
exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact or any of them or their
or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof and the
registrant hereby confers like authority on its behalf.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates
indicated.

Dated: July 1, 2015

By: /s/ JOHN T. HEWITT
John T. Hewitt
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of
the Board
(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: July 1, 2015

By: /s/ KATHLEEN E. DONOVAN
Kathleen E. Donovan
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Dated: July 1, 2015

By:  /s/ THOMAS S. DANIELS
Thomas S. Daniels
Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Dated: July 1, 2015
By: /s/ GORDON D'ANGELO

Gordon D'Angelo
Director

Dated: July 1, 2015 By: /s/ JOHN R. GAREL
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John R. Garel
Director

Dated: July 1, 2015
By: /s/ STEVEN IBBOTSON

Steven Ibbotson
Director
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Dated: July 1, 2015
By: /s/ ROSS LONGFIELD

Ross Longfield
Director

Dated: July 1, 2015
By: /s/ ELLEN MCDOWELL

Ellen McDowell
Director

Dated: July 1, 2015
By: /s/ GEORGE T. ROBSON

George T. Robson
Director
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LIBERTY TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Financial Statements
As of April 30, 2015 and 2014 and for the years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013 
(With Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Thereon)

60

Edgar Filing: POLYONE CORP - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 85



Table of Contents

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Liberty Tax, Inc.:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Liberty Tax, Inc.
and subsidiaries (the Company) as of April 30, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the
years in the three‑year period ended April 30, 2015. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Liberty Tax, Inc. and subsidiaries as of April 30, 2015
and 2014, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the
three‑year period ended April 30, 2015, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

/s/ KPMG LLP
Norfolk, Virginia
July 1, 2015

F-1
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LIBERTY TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
April 30, 2015 and 2014 
(In thousands, except share data)

2015 2014
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $21,387 $46,080
Receivables:
Accounts receivable 46,121 43,122
Notes receivable - current 24,465 27,715
Interest receivable, net of uncollectible amounts 1,033 415
Allowance for doubtful accounts - current (5,692 ) (5,596 )
Total current receivables, net 65,927 65,656
Assets held for sale 5,160 4,413
Deferred income tax asset 6,921 4,058
Other current assets 6,470 5,325
Total current assets 105,865 125,532
Property, equipment, and software, net 36,232 38,343
Notes receivable - non-current 22,416 17,078
Allowance for doubtful accounts - non-current (1,663 ) (1,254 )
Total non-current notes receivables, net 20,753 15,824
Goodwill 3,377 2,997
Other intangible assets, net 14,672 14,295
Other assets 3,247 1,772
Total assets $184,146 $198,763
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Current installments of long-term debt $3,934 $6,797
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 17,321 15,023
Due to Area Developers (ADs) 24,340 18,236
Income taxes payable 2,147 9,676
Deferred revenue - current 6,076 6,051
Total current liabilities 53,818 55,783
Long-term debt, excluding current installments 21,463 21,691
Deferred revenue - non-current 7,640 8,059
Deferred income tax liability 2,363 3,045
Total liabilities 85,284 88,578
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' equity:
Special voting preferred stock, $0.01 par value per share, 10 shares
authorized, issued, and outstanding — —

Class A common stock, $0.01 par value per share, 21,200,000 shares
authorized, 11,905,156 and 12,409,208 shares issued and outstanding at
April 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively

119 124

Class B common stock, $0.01 par value per share, 1,000,000 shares
authorized, 900,000 shares issued and outstanding 9 9

Exchangeable shares, $0.01 par value, 1,000,000 shares issued and
outstanding 10 10
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Additional paid-in capital 4,082 9,402
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes (697 ) 66
Retained earnings 95,339 100,574
Total stockholders' equity 98,862 110,185
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $184,146 $198,763

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income
Years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013
(In thousands, except per share data)

2015 2014 2013
Revenues:
Franchise fees $6,246 $7,844 $8,721
AD fees 6,901 6,680 7,699
Royalties and advertising fees 80,469 78,426 73,129
Financial products 37,058 34,512 30,345
Interest income 14,707 14,231 13,848
Tax preparation fees, net of discounts 13,877 14,295 10,148
Other revenue 2,914 3,708 3,723
Total revenues 162,172 159,696 147,613
Operating expenses:
Employee compensation and benefits 41,079 38,399 37,998
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 40,604 34,756 31,212
AD expense 28,497 27,319 25,736
Advertising expense 18,308 15,124 15,293
Depreciation, amortization, and impairment charges 9,900 9,277 6,538
Impairment of online software and acquired customer
lists 8,392 — —

Total operating expenses 146,780 124,875 116,777
Income from operations 15,392 34,821 30,836
Other income (expense):
Foreign currency transaction loss (2 ) (13 ) —
Gain on sale of available-for-sale securities — 2,183 —
Interest expense (1,889 ) (1,355 ) (2,039 )
Income before income taxes 13,501 35,636 28,797
Income tax expense 4,811 13,654 11,170
Net income 8,690 21,982 17,627
Less: Net income attributable to participating securities (633 ) (1,571 ) (1,525 )
Net income attributable to Class A and Class B
common stockholders $8,057 $20,411 $16,102

Net income per share attributable to Class A and
Class B common stockholders:
Basic $0.63 $1.57 $1.26
Diluted 0.61 1.51 1.25

Weighted-average shares used to compute net income
per share attributable to Class A and Class B common
stockholders:
Basic 12,738,887 12,990,522 12,783,214
Diluted 14,294,773 14,536,971 14,072,358

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013
(In thousands)

2015 2014 2013
Net income $8,690 $21,982 $17,627
Interest rate swap agreements, net of taxes of $-, $-, and
$268, respectively — — 438

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities, net of taxes
of $-, $608, and $237, respectively — 975 387

Reclassified gain on sale of available-for-sale securities
included in income, net of taxes of $-, $821, and $-,
respectively

— (1,362 ) —

Foreign currency translation adjustment (763 ) (741 ) (307 )
Comprehensive income $7,927 $20,854 $18,145

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity
Year ended April 30, 2015
(In thousands)

Class A Class B Class A Special voting
preferred stockCommon stock Common stock Preferred stock

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount
Balance at May 1,
2014 12,409 $124 900 $9 — $— — $—

Exercise of stock
options 762 8 — — — — — —

Shares issued 3 — — — — — — —
Repurchase of
common stock (1,284 ) (13 ) — — — — — —

Vesting of
restricted stock 15 — — — — — — —

Balance at
April 30, 2015 11,905 $119 900 $9 — $— — $—

Exchangeable
shares Additional

paid-in
capital

Accumulated
other
comprehensive
income (loss),
net

Retained
earningsShares Amount Total

Balance at May 1, 2014 1,000 $10 $9,402 $ 66 $100,574 $110,185
Exercise of stock options — — 11,975 — — 11,983
Repurchase of common
stock — — (24,575 ) — (11,720 ) (36,308 )

Stock-based
compensation expense — — 2,477 — — 2,477

Conversion of
stock-based compensation
awards from liability to
equity classification

— — — — — —

Tax benefit of stock
option exercises — — 4,803 — — 4,803

Net income — — — — 8,690 8,690
Cash dividends ($0.16 per
share) — — — — (2,205 ) (2,205 )

Foreign currency
translation adjustment — — — (763 ) — (763 )

Unrealized gain on
available-for-sale
securities, net of taxes

— — — — — —

Balance at April 30, 2015 1,000 $10 $4,082 $ (697 ) $95,339 $98,862

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity
Year ended April 30, 2014
(In thousands)

Class A Class B Class A Special voting
preferred stockCommon stock Common stock Preferred stock

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount
Balance at
May 1, 2013 11,975 $120 900 $9 — $— — $—

Exercise of
stock options 956 9 — — — — — —

Shares issued 1 — — — — — — —
Repurchase of
common stock (538 ) (5 ) — — — — — —

Vesting of
restricted
stock

15 — — — — — — —

Balance at
April 30, 2014 12,409 $124 900 $9 — $— — $—

Exchangeable
shares Additional

paid-in
capital

Accumulated
other
comprehensive
income, net

Retained
earningsShares Amount Total

Balance at May 1, 2013 1,000 $10 $1,911 $ 1,194 $78,592 $81,836
Exercise of stock options — — 13,970 — — 13,979
Repurchase of common
stock — — (13,074 ) — — (13,079 )

Stock-based
compensation expense — — 2,074 — — 2,074

Conversion of
stock-based
compensation awards
from liability to equity
classification

— — 4,238 — — 4,238

Tax benefit of stock
option exercises — — 283 — — 283

Net income — — — — 21,982 21,982
Foreign currency
translation adjustment — — — (741 ) — (741 )

Unrealized gain on
available-for-sale
securities, net of taxes

— — — (387 ) — (387 )

Balance at April 30,
2014 1,000 $10 $9,402 $ 66 $100,574 $110,185

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity
Year ended April 30, 2013
(In thousands)

Class A Class B Class A Special voting
preferred stockCommon stock Common stock Preferred stock

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount
Balance at
May 1, 2012 10,344 $103 900 $9 170 $2,129 — $—

Exercise of
stock options 350 4 — — — — — —

Repurchase of
common stock (422 ) (4 ) — — — — — —

Conversion of
preferred
stock to
common stock

1,703 $17 — $— (170 ) (2,129 ) — —

Balance at
April 30, 2013 11,975 $120 900 $9 — $— — $—

Exchangeable
shares Additional

paid-in
capital

Accumulated
other
comprehensive
income, net

Retained
earningsShares Amount Total

Balance at May 1, 2012 1,000 $10 $3,173 $ 676 $60,965 $67,065
Exercise of stock
options — — 3,797 — — 3,801

Repurchase of common
stock — — (6,452 ) — — (6,456 )

Conversion of
preferred stock to
common stock

— — 2,112 — — —

Stock-based
compensation expense — — 1,496 — — 1,496

Conversion of
stock-based
compensation awards
from equity to liability
classification

— — (2,486 ) — — (2,486 )

Tax benefit of stock
option exercises — — 271 — — 271

Net income — — — — 17,627 17,627
Interest rate swap
agreements, net of
taxes

— — — 438 — 438

Foreign currency
translation adjustment — — — (307 ) — (307 )

Unrealized gain on
available-for-sale
securities, net of taxes

— — — 387 — 387
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Balance at April 30,
2013 1,000 $10 $1,911 $ 1,194 $78,592 $81,836

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013
(In thousands)

2015 2014 2013
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $8,690 $21,982 $17,627
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Provision for doubtful accounts 5,726 8,692 7,098
Depreciation and amortization 8,499 7,836 5,750
Impairment of goodwill and other assets 9,793 1,441 788
Amortization of deferred financing costs 547 334 301
Loss on sale of property, equipment, and software 246 75 —
Stock-based compensation expense related to equity classified
awards 2,477 2,074 1,496

Stock-based compensation expense (income) related to liability
classified awards — (872 ) 2,625

Gain on bargain purchases and sales of Company-owned offices (414 ) (1,143 ) (777 )
Gain on sale of available-for-sale securities — (2,183 ) —
Equity in loss of affiliate 160 214 193
Deferred tax expense (3,545 ) 2,605 4,119
Changes in:
Accounts, notes, and interest receivable and deferred revenue (8,869 ) (7,708 ) (13,857 )
Prepaid expenses and other assets (2,911 ) (573 ) 210
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,685 2,643 (1,837 )
Due to ADs 8,924 4,284 5,213
Income taxes (7,491 ) 3,781 (508 )
Net cash provided by operating activities 24,517 43,482 28,441
Cash flows from investing activities:
Issuance of operating loans to franchisees (93,365 ) (76,013 ) (75,605 )
Payments received on operating loans to franchisees 88,776 71,722 68,782
Purchases of Company-owned offices, AD rights, and acquired
customer lists (8,246 ) (8,706 ) (5,980 )

Proceeds from sale of Company-owned offices and AD rights 3,687 2,879 4,072
Purchase of available-for-sale securities — — (2,980 )
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities — 5,163 —
Purchases of property, equipment, and software (11,463 ) (9,149 ) (11,928 )
Proceeds from sale of property, equipment, and software — 59 —
Net cash used in investing activities (20,611 ) (14,045 ) (23,639 )
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options 11,983 13,979 3,801
Repurchase of common stock (36,308 ) (13,079 ) (6,456 )
Dividends paid (2,205 ) — —
Repayment of other long-term debt (5,850 ) (3,398 ) (2,953 )
Borrowings under revolving credit facility 154,633 137,391 121,216
Repayments under revolving credit facility (154,633 ) (137,391 ) (121,216 )
Payment for debt issue costs (917 ) — (289 )
Tax benefit of stock option exercises 4,803 283 271
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Net cash used in financing activities (28,494 ) (2,215 ) (5,626 )
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, net (105 ) (155 ) (11 )
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (24,693 ) 27,067 (835 )
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 46,080 19,013 19,848
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $21,387 $46,080 $19,013

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
Years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013 
(In thousands)

2015 2014 2013
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest, net of capitalized interest of $200,
$378, and $406 $1,467 $1,179 $1,872

Cash paid for taxes, net of refunds 11,160 7,022 7,328
Accrued capitalized software costs included in accounts
payable 168 149 733

Transfer from goodwill and other intangible assets to
assets held for sale 5,160 4,413 —

Conversion of stock-based compensation awards from
equity to liability classification — — 2,486

Conversion of stock-based compensation awards from
liability to equity classification — 4,238 —

During the years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013,
the Company acquired certain assets from franchisees,
ADs, and third parties as follows:
Fair value of assets purchased $18,310 $18,740 $11,124
Receivables applied, net of amounts due ADs and related
deferred revenue (6,931 ) (5,336 ) (3,079 )

Bargain purchase gains (367 ) (487 ) (410 )
Notes and accounts payable issued (2,766 ) (4,211 ) (1,655 )
Cash paid to franchisees, ADs, and third parties $8,246 $8,706 $5,980
During the years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013,
the Company sold certain assets to franchisees and ADs as
follows:
Book value of assets sold $11,469 $8,135 $6,517
Loss on sale - loss recognized (298 ) (160 ) (417 )
Gain on sale - revenue deferred 2,000 1,872 2,846
Notes received (9,484 ) (6,968 ) (4,874 )
Cash received from franchisees and ADs $3,687 $2,879 $4,072

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
April 30, 2015 and 2014

(1) Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business
Liberty Tax, Inc. (the "Company"), a Delaware corporation, is a holding company engaged
through its subsidiaries as a franchisor and, to a lesser degree, an operator of a system of income
tax preparation offices located in the United States and Canada. The Company's principal
operations are conducted through JTH Tax, Inc. (d/b/a Liberty Tax Service), the Company's
largest subsidiary. Through this system of income tax preparation offices, the Company also
facilitates refund-based tax settlement financial products, such as refund transfer products and
personal income tax refund discounting. The Company also offers online tax preparation services.
Effective July 15, 2014, the Company changed its name from JTH Holding, Inc. to Liberty Tax,
Inc.
The Company provides a substantial amount of lending to its franchisees and area developers
("ADs"). The Company allows franchisees and ADs to defer a portion of the franchise fee and AD
fee, which are paid over time. The Company also offers its franchisees working capital loans to
fund their operations between tax seasons.
Basis of Presentation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Liberty Tax, Inc. and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries. Assets and liabilities of the Company's Canadian operations have been
translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rate in effect at the end of the year. Revenues and
expenses have been translated using the average exchange rates in effect each month of the year.
Foreign exchange transaction gains and losses are recognized when incurred. The Company
consolidates any entities in which it has a controlling interest, the usual condition of which is
ownership of a majority voting interest. The Company also considers for consolidation an entity in
which the Company has certain interest where a controlling financial interest may be achieved
through arrangements that do not involve voting interests. Such an entity, known as a variable
interest entity ("VIE"), is required to be consolidated by its primary beneficiary. The Company
does not possess any ownership interests in franchisee entities; however, the Company may
provide financial support to franchisee entities. Because the Company's franchise arrangements
provide franchisee entities the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact their
economic performance, the Company does not consider itself the primary beneficiary of any such
entity that might be a VIE. Based on the results of management's analysis of potential VIEs, the
Company has not consolidated any franchisee entities. The Company's maximum exposure to loss
resulting from involvement with potential VIEs is attributable to accounts and notes receivables
and future lease payments due from franchisees. When the Company does not have a controlling
interest in an entity but exerts significant influence over the entity, the Company applies the equity
method of accounting. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.
The audited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"). In the opinion of management, all
adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of such financial statements in accordance with
GAAP have been recorded.
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LIBERTY TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
April 30, 2015 and 2014

Office Count
The following table shows the U.S. office activity, the number of processing centers and Canadian
offices, and a breakdown of Company-owned and franchised offices for the 2015, 2014, and 2013
tax seasons.

Tax Season
2015 2014 2013

U.S. Office Locations:
Permanent Office Locations:
Operated during the prior tax season 3,663 3,816 3,730
Offices opened 397 289 405
Offices closed (296 ) (442 ) (319 )
Operated during the current tax season 3,764 3,663 3,816
Seasonal Office Locations:
Operated during the prior tax season 486 427 176
Offices opened 118 334 344
Offices closed (342 ) (275 ) (93 )
Operated during the current tax season 262 486 427

Processing Centers 43 26 19
Total U.S. Office Locations 4,069 4,175 4,262

Canada Office Locations 259 263 258

Total Office Locations 4,328 4,438 4,520

Additional Office Information:
U.S. franchised offices 3,944 3,995 4,028
U.S. Company-owned offices 125 180 234
  Total U.S. offices 4,069 4,175 4,262
Canadian franchised offices 202 227 231
Canadian Company-owned offices 57 36 27
  Total Canadian offices 259 263 258
Total office locations 4,328 4,438 4,520
The Company's new brand, SiempreTax+, operated 57 offices during the 2015 tax season. These
offices consist of second offices opened by current franchisees in territories they already owned,
conversions of existing Liberty Tax offices, and offices opened in new territories.
Territory Sales
During fiscal 2015, the Company sold 212 new territories, compared to 225 during fiscal 2014,
and 376 during fiscal 2013. The 2013 number of new territories includes 137 territories purchased
under the now discontinued "zero franchise fee" program. The 2013 number net of these zero
franchise fee purchases was 239. New territories include territories sold to new franchisees and
additional territories sold to existing franchisees.
Significant Accounting Policies
Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments with
original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are
maintained in bank deposit accounts, which at times may
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LIBERTY TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
April 30, 2015 and 2014

exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and
believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on its cash and cash equivalents balances.
Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount less an allowance
for doubtful accounts and accrue finance charges at 12% annually if unpaid after 30 days. Account
balances are charged off against the allowance after all possible means of collection have been
exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. The Company does not have any
off-balance-sheet credit exposure related to its accounts receivable.
Notes Receivable - Notes receivable are recorded less unrecognized revenue, net of an allowance
for doubtful accounts. Unrecognized revenue relates to the financed portion of franchise fees and
AD fees and, in the case of sales of Company-owned offices, the financed portion of gains related
to such sales in each case where revenue has not yet been recognized. Interest income is accrued
on the unpaid principal balance. The Company provides an allowance against accrued interest on a
delinquent note when a scheduled payment becomes 90 days past due. Notes are written off
against the allowance when all possible means of collection have been exhausted and the potential
for recovery is considered remote.
Concentrations of credit risk - Financial instruments that could potentially subject the Company to
concentrations of credit risk consist of accounts and notes receivable with its franchisees. The
Company manages such risk by evaluating the financial position and value of the franchisees as
well as obtaining the personal guarantee of the individual franchisees. At April 30, 2015 and 2014,
there were no significant concentrations of credit risk associated with any individual franchisee or
group of franchisees.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - The allowance for doubtful accounts includes the Company's
best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in the Company's existing accounts and notes
receivable. Because the repayment of accounts and notes receivable is dependent on the
performance of the underlying franchises, management estimates the amount of the allowance for
doubtful accounts based on a comparison of amounts due to the estimated fair value of the
underlying franchises. Management believes the allowance is adequate to cover the Company's
credit loss exposure. If the carrying amount exceeds the fair value, the receivable is considered
impaired.
Available-for-sale Securities - During fiscal 2013, the Company purchased corporate equity
securities that were subsequently sold during fiscal 2014. Prior to sale, this investment was
classified as available-for-sale and an unrealized gain was recognized, net of tax, in accumulated
other comprehensive income in the stockholders' equity section of the balance sheet. Cash flows
for the purchase and sale of this investment were classified as investing activities.
Assets Held for Sale - Assets held for sale consist of Company-owned offices that the Company
intends to sell to a new or existing franchisee within one year. Assets held for sale are recorded at
the lower of the carrying value or the estimated sales price, less costs to sell, and are evaluated for
impairment at least annually.
Property, Equipment, and Software - Property, equipment, and software are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization are calculated using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally three to five years for
computer equipment, three to seven years for software, five to seven years for furniture and
fixtures, and twenty to thirty years for buildings. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the
lesser of the lease term or the estimated useful lives of the assets. Certain allowable costs of
software developed or obtained for internal use are capitalized and typically amortized over the
estimated useful life of the software.
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Goodwill - Goodwill represents the excess of costs over fair value of assets of businesses
acquired. The reporting unit for the acquisition of assets from various franchisees is considered to
be the franchise territory, and these assets are operated as Company-owned offices. Goodwill is
not amortized, but instead tested for impairment at least annually. Goodwill is tested for
impairment more frequently if events and circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired.
An impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount exceeds the asset's fair
value. This determination is made at the reporting unit level and consists of two steps. First, the
Company determines the fair value of a reporting unit and compares it with its carrying amount.
Second, if the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is
recognized for any excess of the carrying amount of the reporting unit's goodwill over the implied
fair value of that goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined by allocating the fair
value of the reporting unit in a manner similar to a purchase price allocation. The residual fair
value after this allocation is the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill. Fair value of the
reporting unit is determined using a discounted cash flow analysis. Fair value of the reporting unit
for Company-owned offices is determined using the net fees of the offices in the franchise
territory. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying value, step two does not need to
be performed.

F-12

Edgar Filing: POLYONE CORP - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 105



LIBERTY TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
April 30, 2015 and 2014

Deferred Revenue - Deferred revenue represents the amount of cash received for AD fees in
excess of the revenue recognized.
Revenue Recognition - The Company earns revenue from the sales of franchises and granting of
AD rights. Additionally, the Company earns revenue from royalties and advertising fees and other
products. Typically, franchise rights are granted to franchisees for a term of five years with an
option to renew at no additional cost. In exchange for franchise fees and royalties and advertising
fees, the Company is obligated by its franchise agreements to provide training, an operations
manual, site selection guidance, tax preparation software, operational assistance, tax and technical
support, the ability to perform electronic filing, and marketing and advertising. Franchise fee
revenue for the sales of individual territories is recognized when the obligations of the Company
to prepare the franchisee for operation are substantially complete and cash has been received.
AD rights have historically been granted for a term of ten years. The Company recently changed
the term of new and renewal AD contracts to six years. AD fees are recognized as revenue on a
straight-line basis over the initial contract term of each AD agreement with the cumulative amount
of revenue recognized not to exceed the amount of cash received. Amounts due to ADs for their
services under an AD agreement are expensed as the related franchise fees and royalty revenues
are recognized.
Royalties and advertising fees are recognized as franchise territories generate sales. Tax return
preparation fees and financial products revenue are recognized as revenue in the period the related
tax return is filed for the customer. Discounts for promotional programs are recorded at the time
the return is filed and are recorded as reductions to revenues.
Interest income is recognized when cash is received for notes associated with franchise fees or AD
fees. For all other notes and accounts receivable, interest income is recognized when earned, and
is recorded net of an allowance.
Gains on sales of Company-owned offices are recognized when the purchase price is paid. Losses
on sales of Company-owned offices are recognized immediately.
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities - The Company recognizes all derivative
instruments as either assets or liabilities in the balance sheet at their respective fair values. For
derivatives designated in hedging relationships, changes in fair value are either offset through
earnings against the change in fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged or
recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income to the extent the derivative is effective at
offsetting the changes in cash flows being hedged until the hedged item affects earnings.
The Company only enters into a derivative contract when it intends to designate the contract as a
hedge of a forecasted transaction or the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a
recognized asset or liability (cash flow hedge). For all hedging relationships, the Company
formally documents the hedging relationship and its risk-management objective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge, the hedging instrument, the hedged transaction, the nature of the risk being
hedged, how the hedging instrument's effectiveness in offsetting the hedged risk will be assessed
prospectively and retrospectively, and a description of the method used to measure
ineffectiveness. The Company also formally assesses, both at the inception of the hedging
relationship and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging
relationships are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged transactions. For
derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as part of a cash flow hedging relationship,
the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative is reported as a component of other
comprehensive income and reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods during which
the hedged transaction affects earnings. Gains and losses on the derivative representing either
hedge ineffectiveness or hedge components excluded from the assessment of effectiveness are

Edgar Filing: POLYONE CORP - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 106



recognized in current earnings.
The Company discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when it determines that the derivative
is no longer effective in offsetting cash flows attributable to the hedged risk; the derivative expires
or is sold, terminated, or exercised; the cash flow hedge is de-designated because a forecasted
transaction is not probable of occurring; or management determines to remove the designation of
the cash flow hedge.
In all situations in which hedge accounting is discontinued and the derivative remains outstanding,
the Company continues to carry the derivative at its fair value on the balance sheet and recognizes
any subsequent changes in its fair value in earnings. When it is no longer probable that a
forecasted transaction will occur, the Company discontinues hedge accounting and recognizes
immediately in earnings gains and losses that were accumulated in other comprehensive income
related to the hedging relationship.
At April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013 the Company did not have any outstanding derivative
instruments or hedging activities.
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LIBERTY TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
April 30, 2015 and 2014

Deferred Income Taxes - Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are shown on our consolidated balance sheets, are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to the differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.
The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in
the period that includes the enactment date. The Company has elected to classify interest charged
on a tax settlement in interest expense, and accrued penalties, if any, in selling, general, and
administrative expenses.
Intangible Assets and Other Long-Lived Assets - Amortization on intangible assets is calculated
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally from two to
ten years. Long-lived assets, such as property, equipment, and software, and other purchased
intangible assets subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount
of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset.
Recognition and measurement of a potential impairment is performed for these assets at the lowest
level where cash flows are individually identifiable. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Fair value is determined through
various valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models, quoted market values, and
third-party independent appraisals, as considered necessary. Assets to be disposed of are no longer
depreciated or amortized. These assets are classified as held-for-sale and are presented separately
in the appropriate section of the consolidated balance sheets at the lower of their carrying amount
or fair value less estimated cost to sell.
Comprehensive Income - Comprehensive income consists of net income, foreign currency
translation adjustments, interest rate swap agreements, net of taxes, and the unrealized gain on
equity securities available for sale, net of taxes, and is presented in the accompanying consolidated
statements of stockholders' equity and comprehensive income.
Advertising Expenses - Advertising costs are expensed in the period incurred.
Stock-Based Compensation - The Company records the cost of its employee stock-based
compensation as compensation expense in its consolidated statements of income based on the
grant-date fair value of awards using the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model. For liability
classified awards the Company records costs based on the fair value at the reporting date. The
Company recognizes compensation costs for an award that has a graded vesting schedule on a
straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award. The Company reflects the
excess tax benefits related to stock option exercises as additional paid-in capital on its
consolidated balance sheets and as financing cash flows on its consolidated statements of cash
flows.
Compensation costs related to restricted stock units are based on the grant-date fair value and are
amortized to compensation expense over the vesting period.
Use of Estimates
Management has made a number of estimates and assumptions related to the reporting of assets
and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period to prepare these consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes in conformity
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with GAAP. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Accounting Pronouncements
In April 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards
Update ("ASU") 2014-08, Presentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205) and Property, Plant,
and Equipment (Topic 360). This update changes the criteria for reporting discontinued operations
for all public and nonpublic entities as well as requiring new disclosures about discontinued
operations and disposals of components of an entity that do not qualify for discontinued operations
reporting. Public business entities should apply the amendments in this update prospectively to all
disposals of components of an entity and all business or nonprofit activities that, on acquisition,
are classified as held-for-sale that occur within annual periods beginning on or after December 15,
2014, and interim periods within those years. The adoption of the new guidance is not expected to
have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Topic 606), which requires an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be
entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to
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LIBERTY TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
April 30, 2015 and 2014

customers. The ASU will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in GAAP when it
becomes effective. The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
December 15, 2016, and interim periods therein. Early application is not permitted. The standard
permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. The Company is
evaluating the effect that ASU 2014-09 will have on its consolidated financial statements and
related disclosures. The Company has not yet selected a transition method nor has it determined
the effect of the standard on its ongoing financial reporting.
In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-02, Consolidation (Topic 810), which amends
certain requirements for determining whether a variable interest entity must be consolidated. The
amendments are effective for public business entities for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2015, and for interim periods within those fiscal years. The adoption of the new guidance is
not expected to have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.
Segment Reporting
Management has identified two operating segments, U.S. operations and Canadian operations.
Although there are two operating segments, each segment is engaged in providing tax return
preparation and related services and products. These two operating segments, which have similar
gross margin and sales trends, have been aggregated into a single reporting segment because both
segments are similar in the nature of services offered, production process, type of customer, the
distribution methods, and the regulatory environment in which they operate. Canadian operations
contributed $6.9 million, $6.4 million, and $5.9 million in revenues for the years ended April 30,
2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively.
(2) Accounts and Notes Receivable
The Company provides financing to franchisees and ADs for the purchase of franchises, areas and
Company-owned offices, and operating loans for working capital and equipment needs. The
franchise-related notes generally are payable over five years and the operating loans generally are
due within one year. Most notes bear interest at 12%.
Notes and interest receivable, net of unrecognized revenue, as of April 30, 2015 and 2014 are
presented in the consolidated balance sheets as follows:

2015 2014
(In thousands)

Notes receivable - current $24,465 $27,715
Notes receivable - non-current 22,416 17,078
Interest receivable, net of uncollectible amounts 1,033 415
Total notes and interest receivable, net $47,914 $45,208
Most of the notes receivable are due from the Company's franchisees and ADs and are
collateralized by the underlying franchise and, when the franchise or AD is an entity, are
guaranteed by the owners of the respective entity. The debtors' ability to repay the notes is
dependent upon both the performance of the tax preparation industry as a whole and the individual
franchisees' or ADs' areas.
The table above does not include unrecognized revenue. Unrecognized revenue relates to the
financed portion of franchise fees and AD fees and, in the case of sales of Company-owned
offices, the financed portion of gains related to these sales in each case where revenue has not yet
been recognized. For franchise fees and gains related to the sale of Company-owned offices,
revenue is recorded as note payments are received by the Company. Payments on AD fee notes
receivable generate a corresponding increase in deferred revenue, which is amortized into revenue
over the life of the AD contract, historically ten years. In fiscal 2015 the Company changed the
term of new and renewal AD contracts to six years from ten years and the revenue for these
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contracts will be recognized over that period, subject to the receipt of cash. Unrecognized revenue
was $38.6 million and $39.7 million at April 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Accounts and notes receivable include royalties billed and franchise fees that relate to territories
operated by franchisees located in AD territories and a portion of those accounts and notes are
payable to the AD. The Company has recorded amounts payable to ADs for their share of these
receivables of $24.3 million and $18.2 million at April 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
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The adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts is assessed on a quarterly basis and adjusted
as deemed necessary. Management believes the recorded allowance is adequate based upon its
consideration of the estimated value of the franchises and AD areas supporting the receivables.
Any adverse change in the tax preparation industry or the individual franchisees' or ADs' areas
could affect the Company's estimate of the allowance.
Activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts for the years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013
was as follows.

2015 2014 2013
(In thousands)

Balance at beginning of year $6,850 $6,684 $5,290
Provision for doubtful accounts 5,726 8,692 7,098
Write-offs (5,122 ) (8,460 ) (5,655 )
Foreign currency adjustment (99 ) (66 ) (49 )
Balance at end of year $7,355 $6,850 $6,684
Management considers specific accounts and notes receivable to be impaired if the net amounts
due exceed the fair value of the underlying franchise at the time of the annual valuation and
estimates an allowance for doubtful accounts based on that excess. While not specifically
identifiable as of the balance sheet date, the Company's experience also indicates that a portion of
other accounts and notes receivable are also impaired, because management does not expect to
collect all principal and interest due under the current contractual terms. Net amounts due include
contractually obligated accounts and notes receivable plus accrued interest, net of unrecognized
revenue, reduced by the allowance for uncollected interest, amounts due ADs, related deferred
revenue, and amounts owed to the franchisee by the Company. In establishing the fair value of the
underlying franchise, management considers recent sales between franchisees, net fees of open
offices earned during the most recently completed tax season, and the number of unopened
offices.
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The allowance for doubtful accounts at April 30, 2015 and 2014 was allocated as follows.
2015 2014
(In thousands)

Impaired:
Accounts receivable $7,634 $5,351
Notes and interest receivable, net of unrecognized revenue 10,921 8,527
Less amounts due to ADs and franchisees (1,535 ) (1,166 )
Amounts receivable less amounts due to ADs and franchisees $17,020 $12,712

Allowance for doubtful accounts for impaired accounts and notes
receivable $6,594 $6,131

Non-impaired:
Accounts receivable $38,487 $37,771
Notes and interest receivable, net of unrecognized revenue 36,993 36,681
Less amounts due to ADs and franchisees (25,150 ) (17,818 )
Amounts receivable less amounts due to ADs and franchisees $50,330 $56,634

Allowance for doubtful accounts for non-impaired accounts and notes
receivable $761 $719

Total:
Accounts receivable $46,121 $43,122
Notes and interest receivable, net of unrecognized revenue 47,914 45,208
Less amounts due to ADs and franchisees (26,685 ) (18,984 )
Amounts receivable less amounts due to ADs and franchisees $67,350 $69,346

Total allowance for doubtful accounts $7,355 $6,850
The Company's average investment in impaired notes receivable during the fiscal years ended
April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013 was $7.9 million, $8.5 million, and $8.1 million, respectively.
Interest income recognized related to performing impaired notes was $0.7 million, $0.9 million,
and $0.8 million for the fiscal years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively.
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Analysis of Past Due Receivables
The breakdown of accounts and notes receivable past due at April 30, 2015 and 2014 was as
follows.

2015

Past due

Allowance
for
uncollectible
interest

Current Total
receivables

(In thousands)
Accounts receivable $22,115 $ (938 ) $24,944 $46,121
Notes and interest receivable, net 10,492 (1,165 ) 38,587 47,914
Total accounts, notes, and interest
receivable, net $32,607 $ (2,103 ) $63,531 $94,035

2014

Past due

Allowance
for
uncollectible
interest

Current Total
receivables

(In thousands)
Accounts receivable $19,672 $ (1,926 ) $25,376 $43,122
Notes and interest receivable, net 11,880 (1,063 ) 34,391 45,208
Total accounts, notes, and interest
receivable, net $31,552 $ (2,989 ) $59,767 $88,330

Accounts receivable are considered to be past due if unpaid 30 days after billing and notes
receivable are considered past due if unpaid 90 days after due date, at which time the notes are put
on nonaccrual status. The Company's investment in notes receivable on nonaccrual status at
April 30, 2015 and 2014 was $9.3 million and $10.8 million, respectively. Payments received on
notes in nonaccrual status are applied to interest income first until the note is current and then to
the principal note balance. Nonaccrual notes that are paid current are moved back into accrual
status during the next annual review.

(3) Investments
During the year ended April 30, 2013, the Company purchased corporate equity securities for $3.0
million as a strategic investment in a business partner. The Company classified this investment as
available for sale. These securities were sold during fiscal year ended April 30, 2014 for a realized
gain of $2.2 million, which was reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income and
recorded as other income in the consolidated statements of income. No sales of available-for-sale
securities occurred and, therefore, no gross realized gains or losses were recorded for the fiscal
year ended April 30, 2013. The unrealized gain, net of tax, on the available-for-sale securities at
April 30, 2013 was $0.4 million. We periodically review our investment portfolios to determine
whether any investment is other-than-temporarily impaired due to changes in credit risk or other
potential valuation concerns. The Company did not record any other-than-temporary impairments
of available-for-sale securities during fiscal years 2014 or 2013.
(4) Property, Equipment, and Software, Net
Property, equipment, and software at April 30, 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

2015 2014
(In thousands)
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Land and land improvements $2,259 $2,253
Buildings and building improvements 8,481 7,419
Leasehold improvements 143 200
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 6,013 6,746
Software 37,894 44,036
Construction in progress 393 —
Property, equipment, and software, gross 55,183 60,654
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 18,951 22,311
Property, equipment, and software, net $36,232 $38,343
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Total depreciation and amortization expense on property, equipment, and software was $5.5
million, $3.8 million, and $3.1 million for the years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013,
respectively.
The software included above includes both internally developed software and purchased software.
Included in software are $12.9 million and $6.7 million of assets that had not been placed into
service at April 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. See Note 5 for a description of the impairment
related to the Company's online software and acquired online customer lists.
The Company is obligated under various operating leases for office space that expire at various
dates. At April 30, 2015, future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases
with initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year, together with amounts due from
franchisees under subleases, were as follows:

Lease
payments

Sublease
receipts

(In thousands)
Year ending April 30:
2016 $2,819 $1,323
2017 1,613 720
2018 765 250
2019 259 139
2020 90 31
Thereafter 40 —
Total minimum lease payments $5,586 $2,463
Total rent expense for operating leases, net of subleases, was $3.2 million, $3.4 million, and $3.2
million for the years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively.
(5) Goodwill and Intangible Assets
At the end of the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, assets associated with tax offices acquired from
U.S. franchisees were transferred out of goodwill and intangible assets and classified as assets
held for sale.
Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended April 30, 2015 and 2014 were as
follows:

2015 2014
(In thousands)

Balance at beginning of year $2,997 $5,685
Acquisitions of assets from franchisees 1,107 4,855
Disposals and foreign currency changes, net (465 ) (3,769 )
Impairments (262 ) (874 )
Reclassified to assets held for sale — (2,900 )
Balance at end of year $3,377 $2,997
The Company performed its annual impairment review of goodwill and recorded impairment of
$0.3 million and $0.6 million for the years ended April 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
As of April 30, 2015, the Company reviewed for impairment the assets related to its online tax
preparation business as a result of changes in the pricing environment in the online tax preparation
market, a significant decline in the number of returns prepared online and a decline in the related
revenues experienced in fiscal 2015. The Company believed that these changes indicated that the
carrying amount of assets related to its online tax preparation business may not be recoverable.
Accordingly, the undiscounted future cash flows generated by its online software and acquired
online customer lists were estimated and the Company concluded that the carrying value of those
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assets was not recoverable. An impairment loss of $8.4 million was recorded equal to the excess
of the carrying amount of those assets over their fair value. The fair value of those assets was
determined using a discounted cash flow model.
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The impairment loss was allocated as follows at April 30, 2015:
April 30, 2015
(In thousands)

Software $6,882
Acquired customer lists 1,510
Impairment of online software and acquired customer lists $8,392
Components of amortizable intangible assets as of April 30, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

April 30, 2015
Weighted
average
amortization
period

Gross
carrying
amount

Accumulated
amortization

Net
carrying
amount

(In thousands)
Customer lists acquired from unrelated third
parties 4 years $1,027 $ — $1,027

Assets acquired from franchisees:
Customer lists 4 years 759 (441 ) 318
Reacquired rights 2 years 559 (473 ) 86
AD rights 10 years 17,345 (4,104 ) 13,241
Total intangible assets $19,690 $ (5,018 ) $14,672

April 30, 2014
Weighted
average
amortization
period

Gross
carrying
amount

Accumulated
amortization

Net
carrying
amount

(In thousands)
Customer lists acquired from unrelated third
parties 6 years $4,816 $ (995 ) $3,821

Assets acquired from franchisees:
Customer lists 4 years 551 (387 ) 164
Reacquired rights 2 years 481 (338 ) 143
AD rights 10 years 13,641 (3,474 ) 10,167
Total intangible assets $19,489 $ (5,194 ) $14,295
During fiscal 2014, the Company purchased certain assets of an online tax preparation software
provider for $3.2 million and allocated the purchase price to identifiable intangible assets.
For the years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013 the Company recorded as intangible assets
$1.7 million, $9.0 million, and $6.3 million, respectively, from acquisitions of various franchises.
During fiscal 2014 and 2013, both U.S. and Canadian franchise acquisitions were recorded an
intangible assets; however, during fiscal 2015, the majority of U.S. franchise acquisitions were
recorded as assets held for sale, while Canadian franchise acquisitions continued to be recorded as
intangible assets. These acquisitions were accounted for as business combinations.
The purchase price of assets acquired from franchisees and recorded as customer lists, reacquired
rights, and goodwill during fiscal 2015, 2014, and 2013 was allocated as follows.

2015 2014 2013
(In thousands)

Customer lists $435 $2,372 $1,631
Reacquired rights 284 1,806 1,216
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Goodwill 975 4,855 3,449
Purchase price of assets acquired from franchisees, not
held for sale $1,694 $9,033 $6,296
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The Company expects that assets associated with Company-owned offices will be sold before the
end of their estimated useful life. During the years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013,
impairment analyses were performed for amortizable intangible assets. Write-downs of assets
acquired from franchisees relate to Company-owned offices that were subsequently closed and
impairment of the fair value of existing Company-owned offices based on the impairment
analysis. As a result, the carrying values of assets acquired from franchisees were reduced by $0.5
million for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2015, $0.9 million for 2014, and $0.8 million for 2013.
These amounts were expensed to impairment charges on the consolidated statements of income.
The Company estimated the fair value of assets associated with Company-owned offices based on
various models, including data and input from a third-party.
For the years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013, amortization expense was $3.6 million, $4.1
million, and $2.7 million, respectively. Annual amortization expense for the next five years is
estimated to be as follows (in thousands):
Year ending April 30:
2016 $2,358
2017 2,120
2018 2,005
2019 1,833
2020 1,481
Total estimated amortization expense $9,797
(6) Assets Held for Sale
At the end of the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, the Company reclassified certain assets associated
with Company-owned offices from goodwill, other intangible assets, and property, equipment, and
software to assets held for sale. An impairment charge of $0.5 million was recorded upon
classification of these assets as held for sale and expensed to depreciation, amortization, and
impairment charges on the consolidated statements of income.
The amounts reclassified from each category were as follows (in thousands):
Customer lists $1,259
Reacquired rights 624
Goodwill 2,900
Property, equipment, and software 130
Total assets transferred to assets held for sale 4,913
Impairment charge on assets held for sale (500 )
Total assets held for sale at April 30, 2014 $4,413
During fiscal 2015, the Company acquired $8.7 million in assets from U.S. franchisees and third
parties that were first accounted for as business combinations, with the value allocated to customer
lists and reacquired rights of $4.4 million and goodwill of $4.3 million prior to being recorded as
assets held for sale. The acquired businesses are operated as Company-owned offices until a buyer
is located and a new franchise agreement is entered into.
Changes in the carrying amounts of assets held for sale for the fiscal years ended April 30, 2015
and 2014 were as follows:

2015 2014
(In thousands)

Balance at beginning of year $4,413 $—
Reacquired 8,517 4,913
Dispositions (7,014 ) —
Impairment (756 ) (500 )
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Balance at end of year $5,160 $4,413
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(7) Debt
In October 2014, the Company amended its credit facility. The amended credit facility consists of
a $21.2 million term loan and a revolving credit facility that currently allows borrowing of up to
$203.8 million with an accordion feature that permits the Company to request an increase in
availability of up to an additional $50.0 million. Outstanding borrowings accrue interest, which is
paid monthly, at a rate of the one-month London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") plus a margin
ranging from 1.50% to 2.25% depending on the Company's leverage ratio. At April 30, 2015 and
2014, the interest rate was 1.8% and 1.78%, respectively, and the average interest rate paid during
the fiscal year ended April 30, 2015 was 1.79%. A commitment fee is paid monthly that varies
from 0.25% to 0.50% depending on the Company's leverage ratio on the unused portion of the
credit facility. The indebtedness is collateralized by substantially all the assets of the Company
and both loans mature on April 30, 2019 (except as to the commitments of one lender under the
revolving credit facility, which mature on September 30, 2017).
The credit facility contains certain financial covenants that the Company must meet, including
leverage and fixed-charge coverage ratios as well as minimum net worth requirements. In
addition, the Company must reduce the outstanding balance under its revolving loan to zero for a
period of at least 45 consecutive days each fiscal year. The Company's borrowing availability on
the credit facility at April 30, 2015 was $108.4 million. At April 30, 2015 and 2014, the Company
had no outstanding borrowings under its revolving credit facility. The Company was in
compliance with the financial covenants of its credit facility at April 30, 2015.
The credit facility also contains certain events of default that may cause the bank syndicate to
terminate the credit facility and declare amounts owed to become immediately payable if they
occur. At April 30, 2015, the Company has not incurred an event of default.
Debt at April 30, 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

2015 2014
(In thousands)

Term loan payable in quarterly principal installments of 1.875%, 2.5%,
2.5%, and 3.125% of the original amount borrowed for the years ending
April 30, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019, respectively; at that time a balloon
payment of $14,875 is payable.

$20,453 $21,875

Mortgage note payable to a bank in monthly installments of $16 including
interest at 6.06% through September 2016; at that time a balloon payment
of $2,213 is payable; subject to a prepayment penalty; collateralized by
land and building.

2,279 2,326

Amounts due to former ADs at zero percent interest; due May 2015
through August 2015. 2,626 4,211

Other debt 39 76
Total long-term debt 25,397 28,488
Less current installments 3,934 6,797
Total long-term debt, less current installments $21,463 $21,691
Aggregate maturities of long-term debt at April 30, 2015 are as follows (in thousands):
Year ending April 30:
2016 $3,934
2017 4,463
2018 2,125
2019 14,875
Total long-term debt $25,397
(8) Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
From time to time, the Company uses interest-rate-related derivative financial instruments to
manage its exposure related to changes in interest rates on its variable-rate line of credit and
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forward contracts to manage its exposure to foreign currency fluctuation related to short-term
advances made to its Canadian subsidiary. The Company does not speculate using derivative
instruments nor does it enter into derivative instruments for any purpose other than cash flow
hedging.
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By using derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes in interest rates, the
Company exposes itself to credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the failure of the counterparty
to perform under the terms of the derivative contract. When the fair value of a derivative contract
is positive, the counterparty owes the Company money, which creates credit risk for the Company.
When the fair value of a derivative contract is negative, the Company owes the counterparty
money, and therefore, the Company is not exposed to the counterparty's credit risk in those
circumstances. The Company minimizes counterparty credit risk in derivative instruments by
entering into transactions with high-quality counterparties. The derivative instruments entered into
by the Company do not contain credit-risk-related contingent features.
Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of a derivative instrument that results from a change
in interest rates. The market risk associated with interest rates is managed by establishing and
monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of market risk that may be undertaken.
The Company assesses interest rate risk by continually identifying and monitoring changes in
interest rates that may adversely impact expected future cash flows and by evaluating hedging
opportunities. The Company maintains risk management control systems to monitor interest rate
risk attributable to both the Company's outstanding or forecasted debt obligations and forecasted
revenues as well as the Company's offsetting hedge positions. The risk management control
systems involve the use of analytical techniques, including cash flow sensitivity analysis, to
estimate the expected impact of changes in interest rates and foreign currency rates on the
Company's future cash flows.
It is the policy of the Company to enter into forward contracts at the time short-term advances are
made to its Canadian subsidiary.
Interest rate swap agreements. On July 1, 2009, the Company entered into interest rate swap
agreements with a financial institution to manage fluctuations in cash flows resulting from
changes in the one-month LIBOR interest rate on its line of credit. These swaps effectively
changed the variable-rate line of credit into a fixed-rate line of credit. For the notional amounts,
the Company received a variable interest rate based on the one-month LIBOR and paid a fixed
interest rate of 2.49% to 2.52%, depending on the agreement. The notional amounts of the interest
rate swaps varied from $10.0 million to $70.0 million per month, in relation to the Company's
forecasted seasonal borrowings. These interest rate swaps were designated as cash flow hedges.
During the year ended April 30, 2013, $0.1 million of income was recognized in the consolidated
statements of income due to the ineffectiveness of these interest rate swaps. These interest rate
swaps expired in March 2013.
Forward contracts related to foreign currency exchange rates. In connection with short-term
advances made to its Canadian subsidiary related to personal income tax refund discounting, the
Company enters into forward contracts to eliminate the exposure related to foreign currency
fluctuations. Under the terms of the forward currency contracts, the exchange rate for repayments
is fixed at the time advance is made and the advances are repaid prior to April 30 of each year.
These forward contracts are designated as cash flow hedges. At April 30, 2015 and 2014, there
were no remaining forward contracts outstanding. During the years ended April 30, 2015, 2014,
and 2013, these foreign currency hedges were effective and, therefore, no amounts were
recognized in the consolidated statements of income.
At April 30, 2015, there were no deferred gains on derivative instruments accumulated in other
comprehensive income.
(9) Stockholders' Equity
Preferred Stock and Exchangeable Shares
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The Company has 190,000 shares of authorized Class A preferred stock with a par value of $0.01,
of which none were issued and outstanding at April 30, 2015 and 2014.
The Company also has 10 shares of special voting preferred stock authorized, issued and
outstanding with a par value of $0.01 and no liquidation value. Each share of special voting
preferred stock entitles the holder to vote as if it represents 100,000 shares of Class A common
stock. In conjunction with the special voting preferred stock, there are 1,000,000 exchangeable
shares that are exchangeable at any time into Class A common stock of the Company. The special
voting preferred stock will be canceled at the time the holder exchanges the exchangeable shares.
Common Stock
The Company is authorized to issue 21,200,000 shares of Class A common stock, par value $0.01
per share, and 1,000,000 shares of Class B common stock, par value $0.01 per share. Class A
common stock and Class B common stock entitle the holders to the same rights and privileges and
are identical in all respects as to all matters, except the holders of

F-23

Edgar Filing: POLYONE CORP - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 125



LIBERTY TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
April 30, 2015 and 2014

Class B common stock are entitled to elect one more director than the number of directors elected
by holders of all other classes of stock combined. Additionally, a holder of Class B common stock
may, at the holder's option, elect to convert the Class B common stock into an equal number of
fully paid and non-assessable shares of Class A common stock.
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (loss)
The components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at April 30, 2015 and 2014
are as follows.

2015 2014
(In thousands)

Foreign currency adjustment $(697 ) $66
Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) $(697 ) $66
Net Income per Share
Net income per share of Class A and Class B common stock is computed using the two-class
method. Basic net income per share is computed by allocating undistributed earnings to common
shares and participating securities (Class A preferred stock and exchangeable shares) and using the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Undistributed losses
are not allocated to participating securities because they do not meet the required criteria for such
allocation.
Diluted net income per share is computed using the weighted-average number of common shares
and, if dilutive, the potential common shares outstanding during the period. Potential common
shares consist of the incremental common shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options and
vesting of restricted stock units. The dilutive effect of outstanding stock options and restricted
stock units is reflected in dilutive earnings per share by application of the treasury stock method.
Additionally, the computation of diluted net income per share of Class A common stock assumes
the conversion of Class B common stock and exchangeable shares, if dilutive, while the diluted
net income per share of Class B common stock does not assume conversion of those shares.
The rights, including liquidation and dividend rights, of the holders of Class A and Class B
common stock are identical, with the exception of the election of directors. As a result, the
undistributed earnings for each year are allocated based on the contractual participation rights of
the Class A and Class B common stock as if the earnings for the year had been distributed.
Participating securities have dividend rights that are identical to Class A and Class B common
stock.
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The computation of basic and diluted net income per share for the years ended April 30, 2015,
2014, and 2013 is as follows.

2015
Class A
common
stock

Class B
common
stock

(In thousands, except for
share and per share amounts)

Basic net income per share:
Numerator:
Allocation of undistributed earnings $8,076 $614
Amounts allocated to participating securities:
Exchangeable shares (588 ) (45 )
Net income attributable to common stockholders $7,488 $569
Denominator:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding 11,838,887 900,000
Basic net income per share $0.63 $0.63

Diluted net income per share:
Numerator:
Allocation of undistributed earnings for basic computation $7,488 $569
Reallocation of undistributed earnings as a result of assumed
conversion of:
Class B common stock to Class A common stock 569 —
Exchangeable shares to Class A common stock 633 —
Net income attributable to stockholders $8,690 $569
Denominator:
Number of shares used in basic computation 11,838,887 900,000
Weighted-average effect of dilutive securities:
Class B common stock to Class A common stock 900,000 —
Exchangeable shares to Class A common stock 1,000,000 —
Employee stock options and restricted stock units 555,886 36,415
Weighted-average diluted shares outstanding 14,294,773 936,415
Diluted net income per share $0.61 $0.61
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2014
Class A
common stock

Class B
common stock

(In thousands, except for share
and per share amounts)

Basic net income per share:
Numerator:
Allocation of undistributed earnings $20,459 $1,523
Amounts allocated to participating securities:
Exchangeable shares (1,462 ) (109 )
Net income attributable to common stockholders $18,997 $1,414
Denominator:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding 12,090,522 900,000
Basic net income per share $1.57 $1.57

Diluted net income per share:
Numerator:
Allocation of undistributed earnings for basic computation $18,997 $1,414
Reallocation of undistributed earnings as a result of assumed
conversion of:
Class B common stock to Class A common stock 1,414 —
Exchangeable shares to Class A common stock 1,571 —
Net income attributable to stockholders $21,982 $1,414
Denominator:
Number of shares used in basic computation 12,090,522 900,000
Weighted-average effect of dilutive securities:
Class B common stock to Class A common stock 900,000 —
Exchangeable shares to Class A common stock 1,000,000 —
Employee stock options and restricted stock units 546,449 35,153
Weighted-average diluted shares outstanding 14,536,971 935,153
Diluted net income per share $1.51 $1.51
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2013
Class A
common stock

Class B
common stock

(In thousands, except for share
and per share amounts)

Basic net income per share:
Numerator:
Allocation of undistributed earnings $16,386 $1,241
Amounts allocated to participating securities:
Class A preferred stock (247 ) (18 )
Exchangeable shares (1,171 ) (89 )
Net income attributable to common stockholders $14,968 $1,134
Denominator:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding 11,883,214 900,000
Basic net income per share $1.26 $1.26

Diluted net income per share:
Numerator:
Allocation of undistributed earnings for basic computation $14,968 $1,134
Reallocation of undistributed earnings as a result of assumed
conversion of:
Class B common stock to Class A common stock 1,134 —
Class A preferred stock to Class A common stock 265 —
Exchangeable shares to Class A common stock 1,260 —
Net income attributable to stockholders $17,627 $1,134
Denominator:
Number of shares used in basic computation 11,883,214 900,000
Weighted-average effect of dilutive securities:
Class B common stock to Class A common stock 900,000 —
Class A preferred stock to Class A common stock 210,560 —
Exchangeable shares to Class A common stock 1,000,000 —
Employee stock options and restricted stock units 78,584 5,054
Weighted-average diluted shares outstanding 14,072,358 905,054
Diluted net income per share $1.25 $1.25
Diluted net income per share excludes the impact of shares of potential common stock from the
exercise of options and vesting of restricted stock units to purchase 210,416, 483,397 and
2,402,183 shares for the years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively, because the
effect would be anti-dilutive.
(10) Stock Compensation Plan
Stock Options
In August 2011, the Board of Directors approved the JTH Holding, Inc. 2011 Equity and Cash
Incentive Plan. Employees and outside directors are eligible to receive awards and a total of
2,500,000 shares of Class A common stock were authorized for grant under the plan. At April 30,
2015, 1,458,756 shares of Class A common stock remained available for grant.
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The following table summarizes the information for options granted in the years ended April 30,
2015, 2014, and 2013.

2015 2014 2013
Weighted-average fair value of options
granted $9.59 $6.87 $1.80

Dividend yield 0.0% - 2.2% —% —%
Expected volatility 31.1% - 31.7% 34.1% - 37.0% 13.0% - 14.9%
Expected terms 5 years 4 - 5 years 4 - 6 years
Risk-free interest rates 1.6% - 1.9% 0.8% - 1.6% 0.6% - 1.0%
The Company does not have enough public trading history to calculate volatility for the term of
the granted options, therefore, it used a 50/50 weighted-average volatility, equally weighing our
public trading history and that of other public companies in the tax preparation industry.
The grants made prior to June 2012 were made prior to our becoming a public company; therefore,
we considered appropriate accounting literature regarding the valuation of privately-held company
equity securities and determined that the values established in private transactions provided a
reasonable basis for establishing the fair value for stock compensation expense purposes. On this
basis, we did not obtain any third party valuation or utilize other valuation methods. Any grants
made after we became a public company were valued using the closing market price of the
preceding business day.
Stock option activity during the years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013 was as follows:

Number of
options

Weighted
average
exercise price

Outstanding at April 30, 2012 2,729,013 $14.21
Granted 332,035 15.00
Exercised (349,500 ) 10.88
Canceled (176,865 ) 13.65
Outstanding at April 30, 2013 2,534,683 14.81
Granted 628,374 20.42
Exercised (955,592 ) 14.63
Canceled (267,059 ) 15.03
Outstanding at April 30, 2014 1,940,406 16.68
Granted 170,416 32.87
Exercised (761,913 ) 15.73
Canceled (5,350 ) 15.00
Outstanding at April 30, 2015 1,343,559 $19.28
Intrinsic value is defined as the fair value of the stock less the cost to exercise. The total intrinsic
value of options exercised was $13.3 million, $9.4 million, and $1.7 million during the years
ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively. The total intrinsic value of stock options
outstanding at April 30, 2015 was $12.2 million. Outstanding options have vesting terms that
range from six months to six years from the date of grant and expire from four to five years after
the vesting date.
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Nonvested stock options (options that had not vested in the period reported) activity during the
years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013 was as follows:

Nonvested
options

Weighted
average
exercise price

Outstanding at April 30, 2012 452,500 $15.00
Granted 332,035 15.00
Vested (596,935 ) 15.00
Canceled (55,100 ) 15.00
Outstanding at April 30, 2013 132,500 15.00
Granted 628,374 20.42
Vested (275,874 ) 16.93
Outstanding at April 30, 2014 485,000 20.92
Granted 170,416 32.87
Vested (270,000 ) 18.99
Outstanding at April 30, 2015 385,416 $27.56
At April 30, 2015, unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested stock options was $2.8
million. These costs are expected to be expensed through fiscal 2021.
The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at
April 30, 2015.

Options outstanding Options exercisable

Range of Exercise
Prices

Number of
options
outstanding

Weighted
average
exercise price

Weighted
average
remaining
contractual
life (in years)

Number of
options
exercisable

Weighted
average
exercise price

$10.50 12,500 $10.50 1.0 12,500 $10.50
15.00 705,047 15.00 2.2 705,047 15.00
16.38 - 19.75 280,596 17.88 4.5 205,596 17.81
26.18 - 29.48 205,000 26.66 6.6 35,000 26.18
33.38 - 33.79 140,416 33.60 6.5 — —

1,343,559 $19.28 958,143 $15.95
During the fiscal year ended April 30, 2013, the settlement of certain stock option transactions
caused a change in the classification of related outstanding stock options to a liability instrument
from an equity instrument, which resulted in an increase in stock compensation expense of $2.6
million. At April 30, 2013, the value of the liability for the 997,824 options that changed
classifications from an equity to a liability instrument was $5.1 million. On June 11, 2013, the
Company's board of directors voted to prohibit those types of transactions; therefore, the Company
reclassified the stock options back to equity instruments, resulting in a reduction to stock
compensation expense of $0.9 million. The liability was removed and the remainder was
reclassified to additional paid-in-capital.
Restricted Stock Units
The Company has awarded restricted stock units to its non-employee directors and certain
employees. Restricted stock units are valued at the closing stock price the day preceding the grant
date. Compensation costs associated with these restricted shares are amortized on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period and recognized as an increase in additional paid-in capital. At April
30, 2015, unrecognized compensation cost related to restricted stock units was $0.6 million. These
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Restricted stock activity during the years ended April 30, 2015 and 2014 was as follows. The
Company did not issue restricted stock units prior to fiscal year 2013.

Number of RSUs
Weighted Average
Fair Value at
Grant Date

Balance at April 30, 2012 — $—
Granted 15,971 13.50
Balance at April 30, 2013 15,971 13.50
Granted 23,565 16.86
Vested (14,598 ) 13.36
Canceled (3,493 ) 16.07
Balance at April 30, 2014 21,445 16.87
Granted 25,691 33.38
Vested (14,746 ) 16.38
Canceled (3,461 ) 26.47
Balance at April 30, 2015 28,929 $30.63
(11) Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Financial
assets and liabilities subject to fair value measurements are classified according to a three-tier fair
value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value. Valuation
methodologies for the fair value hierarchy are as follows.
•Level 1—Quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in active markets.

•
Level 2—Quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical
or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, and model-based valuations in which
all significant inputs are observable in the market.

•Level 3—Unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore, requiring an entity
to develop its own assumptions.
The Company measures or monitors certain of its assets and liabilities on a fair value basis. Fair
value is used on a recurring basis for those assets and liabilities for which fair value is the primary
basis of accounting. Other assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis;
that is, they are subject to fair value adjustment in certain circumstances, such as when there is
evidence of impairment.
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The following tables present, for each of the fair value hierarchy levels, the assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring and nonrecurring basis at April 30, 2015 and 2014.

April 30, 2015 Fair value
measurements using

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(In thousands)

Recurring assets:
Cash equivalents $16,975 $16,975 $— $—
Total recurring assets 16,975 16,975 — —
Nonrecurring assets:
Impaired accounts and notes receivable 11,961 — — 11,961
Impaired online software 1,253 — — 1,253
Impaired acquired online customer lists 1,027 — — 1,027
Impaired goodwill 224 — — 224
Impaired reacquired rights 79 — — 79
Impaired customer lists 126 — — 126
Assets held for sale 5,160 — — 5,160
Total nonrecurring assets 19,830 — — 19,830
Total recurring and nonrecurring assets $36,805 $16,975 $— $19,830

April 30, 2014 Fair value
measurements using

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(In thousands)

Recurring assets:
Cash equivalents $42,918 $42,918 $— $—
Total recurring assets 42,918 42,918 — —
Nonrecurring assets:
Impaired accounts and notes receivable 7,747 — — 7,747
Impaired goodwill 86 — — 86
Impaired reacquired rights 42 — — 42
Impaired customer lists 52 — — 52
Assets held for sale 4,413 — — 4,413
Total nonrecurring assets 12,340 — — 12,340
Total recurring and nonrecurring assets $55,258 $42,918 $— $12,340
The Company's policy is to recognize transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy on the
date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There were no transfers into
or out of Level 1 or 2 recurring fair value measurements for the years ended April 30, 2015 and
2014.
The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of our financial
instruments.
Cash equivalents: The carrying amounts approximate fair value because of the short maturity of
these instruments. Cash equivalent financial instruments consist of money market accounts.
Impaired accounts and notes receivable: Accounts and notes receivable are considered to be
impaired if the net amounts due exceed the fair value of the underlying franchise or if
management considers it probable that all principal and interest will not be collected when
contractually due. In establishing the estimated fair value of the underlying franchise,
consideration is given to recent sales between franchisees, the net fees of open offices, and the
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Impaired goodwill, reacquired rights, and customer lists: Goodwill, reacquired rights, and
customer lists associated with a Company-owned office are considered to be impaired if the net
carrying amount exceeds the fair value of the underlying office. In establishing the fair value of
the underlying office, consideration is given to the related net fees.
Assets held for sale: Assets held for sale are recorded at the lower of the carrying value or the
sales price, less costs to sell, which approximates fair value. The sales price is calculated as a
percentage of the prior year's net fees.
Impaired online software and acquired online customer lists: The online software and acquired
online customer lists are considered to be impaired if the net carrying amount of these assets
exceeds the fair value of these assets. The fair value of these assets was determined using a
discounted cash flow model.
Other Fair Value Measurements
Accounting standards require the disclosure of the estimated fair value of financial instruments
that are not recorded at fair value. For the financial instruments not recorded at fair value,
estimates of fair value are made at a point in time based on relevant market data and information
about the financial instrument. No readily available market exists for a significant portion of the
Company's financial instruments. Fair value estimates for these instruments are based on current
economic conditions, interest rate risk characteristics, and other factors. Many of these estimates
involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and cannot be determined with precision.
Therefore, the calculated fair value estimates in many instances cannot be substantiated by
comparison to independent markets and, in many cases, may not be realizable in a current sale of
the instrument. In addition, changes in assumptions could significantly affect these fair value
estimates. The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating the
fair value of these financial instruments.
Receivables other than notes, other current assets, accounts payable and accrued expenses, and
due to ADs: The carrying amounts approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these
instruments (Level 1).
Notes receivable: The carrying amount approximates fair value because the interest rate charged
by the Company on these notes approximates rates currently offered by local lending institutions
for loans of similar terms to individuals/entities with comparable credit risk (Level 3).
Long-term debt: The carrying amount approximates fair value because the interest rate paid has a
variable component (Level 2).
(12) Employee 401(k) Plan
The Company sponsors a defined-contribution 401(k) profit sharing plan. Under the plan,
employees who are 18 years of age and have completed 90 days of service are eligible to make
voluntary contributions to the plan. The Company matches 50% of each employee's contribution
up to 3% of the employee's salary. Total compensation expense related to these contributions was
$0.5 million, $0.5 million, and $0.4 million for the years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013,
respectively.
(13) Income Taxes
The Company computes its expense or benefit from income taxes by applying the estimated
annual effective tax rate to income or loss from recurring operations and adding the effects of any
discrete income tax items specific to the period.
Congress extended the federal research and development (“R&D”) credit through December 31,
2014; this included a reinstatement of the R&D credit retroactive to January 1, 2014. During the
three months ended January 31, 2015, we recorded a discrete tax benefit of approximately $0.2
million for the retroactive effect. Due to the expiration of the credit on December 31, 2014, we
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reduced the projected tax benefit of the fiscal 2015 credit by $0.1 million, which represents a third
of our fiscal year projected credit. Should the credit again be extended retroactively, we will
record the benefit in the quarter of enactment.
Interest incurred from income taxes is recognized as incurred and recorded as income tax expense
on the consolidated statements of income. Penalties are recognized as incurred and recorded as
nondeductible penalties expense and included in general and administrative expense on the
consolidated statements of income.
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Total income taxes were calculated for the years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013 as follows.
2015 2014 2013
(In thousands)

Income tax expense $4,811 $13,654 $11,170
Tax benefit of stock option exercises (4,803 ) (283 ) (271 )
Interest rate swap agreements — — 257
Unrealized appreciation on available-for-sale securities — (252 ) 252
Total income taxes $8 $13,119 $11,408
Components of income tax expense for the years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013 were as
follows.

2015 2014 2013
(In thousands)

Current:
Federal $5,973 $8,632 $5,368
State 2,157 2,036 1,254
Foreign 226 381 429
Current tax expense 8,356 11,049 7,051
Deferred:
Federal (2,629 ) 2,192 3,365
State (950 ) 517 787
Foreign 34 (104 ) (33 )
Deferred tax expense (benefit) (3,545 ) 2,605 4,119
Total income tax expense $4,811 $13,654 $11,170
For the years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013, income before taxes consisted of the
following.

2015 2014 2013
(In thousands)

U.S. operations $12,459 $34,746 $27,434
Foreign operations 1,042 890 1,363
Income before income taxes $13,501 $35,636 $28,797
Income tax expense differed from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. federal income tax
rate of 35% to pretax income from continuing operations as a result of the following for the years
ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013.

2015 2014 2013
(In thousands)

Computed "expected" income tax expense $4,725 $12,473 $10,079
Increase (decrease) in income taxes resulting from:
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 1,034 1,819 1,455
Nondeductible expenses 308 143 171
Tax credits (251 ) (555 ) (545 )
Domestic production deduction (466 ) (40 ) (155 )
Stock compensation expense (378 ) 78 255
Other (161 ) (264 ) (90 )
Total income tax expense $4,811 $13,654 $11,170
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The tax effect of temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and tax
basis of assets and liabilities that give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and
liabilities at April 30, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

2015 2014
(In thousands)

Deferred tax assets:
Unexercised nonqualified stock options $1,954 $2,259
Allowance for doubtful accounts 3,124 3,733
Deferred revenue 4,096 3,914
Other 3,209 80
Total deferred tax assets 12,383 9,986
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, equipment, software, and other intangible assets 7,247 8,426
Prepaid expenses 578 547
Total deferred tax liabilities 7,825 8,973
Net deferred tax asset $4,558 $1,013
In assessing the realizability of the gross deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is
more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The
ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable
income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. Management
considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and
tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based upon the level of historical taxable
income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets
are deductible, management believes it is more likely than not that the benefits of these deductible
differences will be realized.
The Company has adopted the accounting and disclosure requirements for uncertain tax positions,
which require a two-step approach to evaluate tax positions. This approach involves recognizing
any tax positions that are more likely than not to occur and then measuring those positions to
determine the amounts to be recognized in the financial statements. The Company has determined
no reserves for uncertain tax positions were required at April 30, 2015 or 2014.
Foreign subsidiary net earnings that were considered permanently reinvested were $0.8 million,
$0.6 million, and $1.0 million for the fiscal years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013,
respectively. Because these foreign subsidiary net earnings are considered permanently reinvested,
the amount of deferred tax liability that would need to be provided if these earnings were not
reinvested is not reasonably determinable.
At April 30, 2015, the tax years that remain subject to examination by the Internal Revenue
Service and other major taxing jurisdictions relate to the fiscal years ended April 30, 2014, 2013,
and 2012.
(14) Related-Party Transactions
The Company considers directors and their affiliated companies as well as executive officers and
their immediate family to be related parties. For the years ended April 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013,
the Company repurchased common stock from related parties as follows.

2015 2014 2013
(In thousands)

Common stock:
Shares repurchased 1,007 316 191
Amount $26,954 $7,449 $3,010
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The Company has entered into a multi-year contract to purchase a license for the use of Canadian
tax software at a price of $0.7 million from a company in which it has an investment accounted for
under the equity method. One of the members of the Company's Board of Directors is affiliated
with the company providing this service.
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The Company is party to an agreement to purchase the right to distribute cloud and mobile
accounting solutions to its franchisees. Payment of $0.3 million was made for this service during
fiscal 2015.
(15) Commitments and Contingencies
In the ordinary course of operations, the Company may become a party to legal proceedings.
Based upon information currently available, management believes that such legal proceedings, in
the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial
condition, cash flows, or results of operations except as provided below.
ERC class action litigation. The Company was sued in November 2011 in federal courts in
Arkansas, California, Florida, and Illinois, and additional lawsuits were filed in federal courts in
January 2012 in Maryland and North Carolina, in February 2012 in Wisconsin, and in May 2012
in New York and Minnesota. In April 2012, a motion to consolidate all of the then-pending cases
before a single judge in federal court in the Northern District of Illinois was granted, and in June
2012, the plaintiffs filed a new complaint in the consolidated action. The consolidated complaint
alleges that the Company's refund transfer products formerly called electronic refund checks
("ERC") represent a form of refund anticipation loan ("RAL") because the taxpayer is "loaned" the
tax preparation fee, and that the refund transfer product is, therefore, subject to federal
truth-in-lending disclosure and state law requirements regulating RALs. The plaintiffs also allege
disclosure violations related to the ERC fees paid by RAL customers. The plaintiffs, therefore,
claim violations of state-specific RAL and other consumer statutes. The lawsuit purports to be a
class action, and the plaintiffs allege potential damages in excess of $5.0 million. The Company
appealed to the United States Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit a ruling that certain of the
plaintiffs’ claims were not subject to arbitration. Following mediation, the parties entered into a
settlement agreement in June 2015 pursuant to which the Company will establish a settlement
fund of $5.3 million, inclusive of settlement administration costs and plaintiffs’ counsel fees. The
parties are in the process of arranging for the remand of the case to the trial court, which must
approve the settlement. The Company has preserved potential claims against a financial product
partner that was responsible for the design of a portion of our ERC programs in the years at issue
in the cases. The Company has also accrued the proposed settlement amount.
TCPA class action litigation. The Company was sued in September 2013 in federal court in
Illinois in connection with alleged violations of the Telephone Consumer Protection Act. Plaintiff
alleges that the Company inappropriately made auto dialed telephone calls to cellular telephones,
seeks the certification of a nationwide class action, and claims statutory damages of $500-$1,500
per violation. The Company tendered the defense of this litigation to a third party entity that had
contracted with the Company to solicit potential franchisees, and that third party entity
acknowledged its defense and indemnification obligations to the Company. However, because the
third party did not have the financial resources to satisfy its defense and indemnity obligations, the
Company concluded that it could not rely upon the fulfillment of those obligations. In September
2014, the Company and the plaintiffs reached a tentative settlement of this litigation pursuant to
which the Company will establish a settlement fund of $3.0 million, inclusive of settlement
administration costs and plaintiffs’ counsel fees. This settlement has received the preliminary
approval of the court, but remains subject to other conditions typical in a class action. The
Company has accrued the proposed settlement amount.
The Company is also party to claims and lawsuits that are considered to be ordinary, routine
litigation incidental to the business, including claims and lawsuits concerning the preparation of
customers' income tax returns, the fees charged to customers for various products and services,
relationships with franchisees, intellectual property disputes, employment matters, and contract
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disputes. Although the Company cannot provide assurance that it will ultimately prevail in each
instance, the Company believes the amount, if any, it will be required to pay in the discharge of
liabilities or settlements in these claims will not have a material adverse impact on its consolidated
results of operations or financial position.

F-35

Edgar Filing: POLYONE CORP - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 142



LIBERTY TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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April 30, 2015 and 2014

(16) Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
Three Months Ended
April 30,
2015

January 31,
2015

October 31,
2014 July 31, 2014

(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Revenue $98,919 $47,680 $7,734 $7,839
Impairment of online software and
acquired customer lists 8,392 — — —

Tentative settlements of class action
litigation cases, net of estimated
recoveries

1,421 4,066 2,130 —

Net income (loss) $26,743 $1,919 $(11,328 ) $(8,644 )
Weighted-average basic shares
outstanding 12,728,341 12,679,286 12,680,306 12,867,273

Weighted-average dilutive shares
outstanding 14,155,818 14,227,163 12,680,306 12,867,273

Net income (loss) per share of Class A
and Class B common stock:
Basic $1.95 $0.14 $(0.89 ) $(0.67 )
Diluted $1.89 $0.13 $(0.89 ) $(0.67 )

Three Months Ended
April 30,
2014

January 31,
2014

October 31,
2013 July 31, 2013

(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Revenue $103,574 $40,740 $7,317 $8,065
Gain on sale of available-for-sale
securities — 1,995 188 —

Net income (loss) $32,331 $4,056 $(8,478 ) $(5,927 )
Weighted-average basic shares
outstanding 13,154,238 12,991,857 12,926,060 12,895,286

Weighted-average dilutive shares
outstanding 14,853,416 14,654,666 12,926,060 12,895,286

Net income (loss) per share of Class A
and Class B common stock:
Basic $2.28 $0.29 $(0.66 ) $(0.46 )
Diluted $2.18 $0.28 $(0.66 ) $(0.46 )
Because most of the Company's customers file their tax returns during the period from January
through April of each year, most of the Company's revenues are earned during this period. As a
result, the Company generally operates at a loss through the first eight months of the fiscal year.
(17) Subsequent Events
On June 17, 2015, the Company's Board of Directors approved a cash dividend of $0.16 per share
payable on July 22, 2015 to holders of record of common stock and common stock equivalents on
July 15, 2015.
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